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4. Juda Az g9adisNUNZUIaIUNI)

2020 2019
fiu fiu

Guintud (Josziiviuti 4.1) 16.912.658.373 11.536.192.040

vanfuean Twnzwiniunig usnaisfuaninidotags

910 1y Gudingse) (Dnszfivwh 4.2) 68.598.969.381 38.278.474.374

Q008 WEVEN 1y MununIudidudn

(Dnsziiuie 6) 85.511.627.754 49.814.666.414

Gueninifntauzan war QUUINKIS9InIURzUIUNIL

Hunzunwn (Joeziiviwin 4.3) 385.643.347.914 447.209.654.691
471.154.975.668 497.024.321.105

41 Gudalui

2020 2019

7y fiu

Gudntud  sznuGuiu 7.515.212.500 5.974.025.000
Guantud  sznuduoindzann 9.397.445.873 5.562.167.040
16.912.658.373 11.536.192.040

4.2 g9aisgdmzurarun1) usNIisMGudininilialagszy1a Az (Fudanniuy
ATUJUNIY

2020 2019

fiv fiu

ﬁudnnmwusznésajﬁejmu 68.598.969.381 38.278.474.374

43 Guuantasse19, Gudanidnilda «az GUUINOAWATYFUNAUTTVNSUIA1U D)
YUY 219

iy fiu
Ssegmuazusuniy (i) 5.795.254.738 4.054.654.691
Suelniean (i) 88.360.867 5.000.000
Gueaindmintavzeo (i) 379.759.732.309  443.150.000.000

385.643.347.914 _ 447.209.654.691
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()  GuuindunsngrtofiunzuinIunnIuazuIuNIY. ge0Guunian tadugznuiuiuinta 4%
(2019: 5%) war 8% (2019: 10%) e93gxnuEunInILann eojenduungiplnfgnaiangi

19 o a Q o o o & ! °a
nzUnSy: Gueindzdn, dinnecg1udy cay daindmdod. Gudinnwazusuniulcuuuinsn
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()  wruewdEnaduRududinivnzunin wng U 219, Ruouduunifduginusiiuvunmdiium
2930z 110. MUAnAzuustduand 01/nma 335Ut 28 Jinsw 2010 nzuInwnLNN €Az K121
y Qo as ® o =~ o o o O o o a ° o &
n1gdzinn fﬁumummmosn, UAduNgINIS9) 25% 293NUInnLUIY e GuUIIRUSNOTY. (Guani

UV tnSuneneY.

(iii) GuaindnidntaszorafivEngatofivnzuni wmg WY 0 ISamnenwe 5,50% ad (2019:

4,50%) 0 wwlu 3 T.
GudanivnsuIa1usY
uuanfivnzuinauduiodmnzdgui:

n) d@rznruasyrduniuGy

gaadisnivnzviarvwrsiudzana

nzuInIy TI"IUE’I’IOﬂjU::EU]OQ'IO.USU’IﬂéﬂJ - 1271 ULasuya)

2393u

gaacdisnivnzuiaruiunrgyzana
nzvel 98I0 Yznntn (Jnewtiute 24)

JP Morgan - dztnnmajouay

Aouluuda «az renmunjuaiaguia (Ja
93Uy 6)

2020 2019

vy vy
2.846.144.413 1.710.432.251
2.846.144.413 1.710.432.251
4.076.429.219 670.052.101
3.197.392.201 472.031.061
7.273.821.420 1.142.083.162
10.119.965.833 2.852.515.413
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5. (udaniunsuIaIusy

2) J@rznuLENUGY

2020 2019
nu nu

enuiuiivnzunivwis udzann
fiv 2.183.049.941 944.284.227
T0a 290.541.360 537.561.334
U0 372.553.112 228.586.690
2.846.144.413 1.710.432.251

genuduiivnzuinaulungdann
102 3.197.392.201 472.031.061
vIn (Jneztiviuin 24) 4.076.429.219 670.052.101
7.273.821.420 1.142.083.162
10.119.965.833 2.852.515.413
6. (Guda was arwnIWMUAGuSa

2020 2019
ny nu

Audn war vsnieyfiunzunIunay
(Onsztiuratn 4) 85.511.627.754 49.814.666.414
Bueinfivnzuinwdy (Dosrfivwd 5) 10.119.965.833 2.852.515.413
95.631.593.587 52.667.181.827

7. Gulomdu waz Guasjoualmanaa

2020 2019
nu nu
Bulndu cay Guaojourlmanan 365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589
Buas (27.570.933.927) (8.674.352.883)

338.039.529.433 419.795.031.706
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Guinmdu waz Guasjourlmanaitadarziyqauii:

n.  3J@r1z01uIsnUOY

Ay 312.376.049.143 369.163.028.817
{3y 44.729.480.975 49.653.280.798
U0 8.504.933.242 9.653.074.974

365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

2. J@zowdswadguinndy

2020 2019

iy fiu

Bunducdieutmodnned 337.298.458.169 390.973.290.556
BundutiuDnaudisutmo 28.312.005.191 37.496.094.033

365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

a. J@izorwumuiadzsalay NsUIa1l ;) YU 219

o Ya bH b o
Gunduticisytmodnnzi

Inned § e 336.011.287.278 368.875.365.960
31777 & Sonwdsn 1.287.170.891 22.097.924.596
o Ya PR Y &

Gunduiudniutisutmo

ﬁﬂﬂéﬂﬂﬂnmxnﬂu - 6.871.516.193
Uﬁﬁj‘fa 3.844.821.351 23.028.534.938
ticge 24.467.183.840 7.596.042.902

365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

7.  dcarznruzrggruiv

2020 2019
b 111] fu
@mfn 365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589
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2.  Jdarzniu2susyInIuEkansio

2020 2019
nu nu

SUTNIDNKIEN 24.888.511.770 25.020.644.875
2LOUINIUNGT) 26.534.322.369 41.257.081.911
2LHEIUINIAT 101.366.456.741 103.626.034.616
suoINWBUE] way S 14.167.998.599 14.688.109.293
ezccszjmuiJﬁmu 142.104.630.462 167.374.892.516
ezccUszﬁnmxﬁ'l 1.671.811.858 2.047.715.035
2zcczmjmu§u~j 54.876.731.561 74.454.906.343
365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

q.  Jcarzaauwuaacia

wuadig wwudzann 324.614.026.565 380.151.755.869
wuadie agUznn 40.996.463.795 48.317.628.720

365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

2. Jrarzaiusindudaussiv
2020 2019
fiy fiy
dingudaue i u3IGun 365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589




.

www .rhbg roup.com

Jarznrwdindvaivziu

NIVEsVIM 299 usSrducguilmndu Gyacui:

1597juusviaty
vsncfiofiud 2.507.419.119 2.454.106.540
Sso3uns Wwd 41.427.253.345 41.667.043.521
fluarensnsegues W (43.743.208.082) (41.643.458.095)
goUN1IRINSOACILANUFY 1.527.311.740 29.727.153
tududi 31 divo 1.718.776.122 2.507.419.119
2020 2019
fiu fiu
21593(FuccsITwWIS
vantfiedud 6.166.933.764 12.926.984.988
Ss99Gues Wwd 94.150.851.286 85.353.351.436
fuawnugiseyiucsud (45.519.347.194) (60.556.506.252)
ﬁza’njzfﬁtau (27.971.071.273) (32.464.366.285)
goUn1gRMNSOcIanU Iy (975.208.778) 907.469.877
tudud 31 divon 25.852.157.805 6.166.933.764
nuindzauntu3ui 31 diuoa 2020 Syt
2020 2019
fiu fiv
Gunduvicisutmadnzi
Inned § Y 1.680.054.358 1.844.374.754
312972 § Bonwdan 38.721.764 663.044.365
Gundudividsuimo
ﬁméwmmzmu - 538.216.001
U?Jﬁjcle 2.196.884.225 4.645.604.055
o 23.655.273.580 983.113.708

27.570.933.927 8.674.352.883
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8. Salunawualgsduvdn

2020 2019
fiu fiu
Gudin
Suth 1 Jgnsu 14.768.349.908 14.768.349.908
oSy 59.590.614 -
dud 31 viuaa 14.827.940.523 14.768.349.908
a1c3auyua1g:
Suth 1 Jynsu (5.285.576.143) (4.133.617.535)
augeutud (1.173.999.347) (1.151.958.608)
Suth 31 Fiuvo (6.459.575.490) (5.285.576.143)
yuainwwdudgad Wi 31 guoa 8.368.365.032 9.482.773.765

Sntunuinlggudufin§usnjogefiudussiesgiingutnuguwluugren way get Juwsniuels cay Uiy
astan.
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9. 3Jududguniifadu

& ! o @ v O a dhan o = o o o ad &
nuEisy imonjofivusnifiees) SuduaDtoniu tad Suh 31 Fivol 2019 DAL

Gudiu:

Tuduih 1 Jinsu 2019
S &

ciugutud

tuduai 31 diuaa 2019

yuamemyuassy:
Tuduii 1 Jynsy 2019
aungutud

Tudui 31 diuol 2019

yuainwivugd saditudui 31
iuaa 2019

91010 (AT
nauduyy
fiu

t699lgmanay
iy

asuuwiach
nu

gr1uwrne

o
o

u
A

13.426.454.248 629.472.287 9.254.136.461 1.134.320.387 2.040.651.792 26.485.035.175
- 32.271.600 1.208.537.587 30.866.600 - 1.271.675.787
13.426.454.248 661.743.887 10.462.674.048 1.165.186.987 2.040.651.792 27.756.710.962
(2.144.513.769) (359.514.237) (7.264.642.844) (717.315.294)  (1.329.897.577) (11.815.883.721)
(1.287.362.770) (97.745.415) (1.161.192.086) (169.346.098) (290.826.737) (3.006.473.106)
(3.431.876.539) (457.259.652) (8.425.834.930) (886.661.392) _(1.620.724.314) _ 14.822.356.827)
9.994.577.709 204.484.235 2.036.839.118 278.525.595 419.927.478 12.934.354.135
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10. 3uduéjnuviidadtu

& ) a v o ndlan o ab &
ﬂﬂUEﬂeU\meﬂjDJ’lUUSOE@82832U%U93U\ U0 UAgid:

2020 2019
fiv 7y
Gudiv:
Tudui 1 Jynsy 7.781.958.119 7.534.603.126
wuSuud 250.107.000 247.354.993
twdudi 31 vivoa 8.032.065.119 7.781.958.119
a1c3suyua e MIUILIL:
Tusuh 1 Jgnsw (7.127.044.071) (6.276.732.149)
nunyulud (209.059.940) (850.311.922)
Twduai 31 divol 7.336.104.011 (7.127.044.071)
yuainwivd gaituduad 31 vuoa 695.961.108 654.914.048
11. 3udusu9
fiv 7y
0178910209001 (i) 3.335.318.379 1.610.361.405
nenwunSy (ii) 17.603.709.593 14.795.757.561
Su7) (iii) 2.494.531.433 986.956.952

23.433.559.405 17.393.075.918

(i) m‘ia'«awaajm Uu:nsu.umuamucjmowmmaumuuunu‘tmsumsncscantmsun (SoU Az a1
MOINIW LAy nASWURMIFTVBDYRnrunWEn) UU 279, €A AUIUDIIVIS).

.. 22 g, o Y o il ' i o o & & a &Y o
(i)  oenwuanSudsnsul nenwean1SuPNGUTONEULNaNaT wazijudinfiunzuinwsys) Twiaoulnnisy
n1du touFuiu lond uciuriado.

I3

(i) nutnudnwesgnzwnmaoucdy duasn, Sududn waz nuEudPy
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12. (Judanangnan
AuinamngnaiSniz tndnwi:

n  J@rizniwdswaz2s)uedan

tINNEEIIVSUY 5.755.555.428 7.275.329.975
tJandzdn 11.604.998.674 10.622.007.742
tandniadio 29.445.487.664 21.247.895.273

46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990

2  J@iznuldzwags)FcNUGY

2020 2019
fiu fiu
Ny 12.426.600.996 11.705.794.670
0an 29.449.842.427 24.131.007.282
U0 4.929.598.343 3.308.431.038
46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990

a 5[8’I3Cl"lJJ‘iZCIUZ[O€I"Iﬁ"Iﬁn
2020 2019
fiu fiv
Wy 3 Bou 17.360.554.102 25.466.422.434
4 1 6 (Osu 14.012.319.009 2.816.603.259
7 1 12 Gou 7.737.025.460 5.178.122.127
ugwhm 12 fisw 7.696.143.195 5.684.085.170

46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990

7 S@iznudswa29)anal

2020 2019

fu nu

éanunﬁn 36.472.868.272 28.610.007.809
Diundw 10.333.173.494 10.535.225.181

46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990




www .rhbg roup.com

2 J@iznidswaz9jaarugadiv

2020 2019

fiy fiu
weiingiw 600.129.159 2.927.121.694
anan 46.205.912.607 36.218.111.296

46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990

13. (JudInaMMnsuIaIuVsY

N J@zniudzwaz29)ijudain

2020 2019

fiu fiu

tJINNZUIIVDU 659.125 739.125
eandrida 30.000.000.000 116.000.000.000

30.000.659.125 116.000.739.125

2  J@riznudswa29)ILNUGU

2020 2019

fiu fiu

Ay 30.000.659.125 116.000.739.125

a Jarzniutagsoainaiia

2020 2019

nu nu

Wy 3 Bou 659.125 739.125

4 1 6 (Bsu - 15.000.000.000

7 m 12 Biou 30.000.000.000 101.000.000.000

30.000.659.125 116.000.739.125




- 5?2:{;3;320 wING 2: eyuiiot

14 31v2uuniSvarnuiddacy

2020 2019

fiu fiu
Auuaindnda (i) (Sneziivry 24) 380.685.132.309  443.150.000.000
fineIdsarnonudda (i) (Dnexiivie 24) 27.943.944.282 26.763.256.772

408.629.076.591 469.913.256.772

O  Gudndndo, Adugenudu InamznzEn, Gidnnnenwoan 1,00% 83 3,75% ad (D 2019: 2,30%
3,75%) o o towDmio 1 otin ¢y 3 3.

() oinesFlazmonnzunm densudnwgsudy way surneuludefiuloy nzwinww sussd  Luagy
- Eo ' ° o as ° @ ¥ b ¥
TQUZNMIUERUSIINLUINI. TIRURLNOIUIFOILINGIEW TNcIoNSINIL.

15. vli§VsU°)

2020 2019

nu nu

gmeun1taniy e Wty (Dnscfuwh 23) - 1.134.392.567
nencdienigae 8.938.957.145 11.606.254.026
go0fiIn, Guas waz gudug (i) 4.831.670.976 3.584.994.001
13.770.628.121 16.325.640.594

. ~ ¥ o Eo & ! o o o & ' it > & o a ! ' & ¥ ' et
()  wendynny, Guas war NEUBUY njofiutwouluiiazaulngnagy: Guluiio car Awsinyulng
Love).

16. vidunrudusac3a

2020 2019
fu b 111]

AFunwFueiss annuEiidy 9.655.727.115 10.465.360.845

(n) nograzduvidunrudueacgariiagii:

2020 2019
fiu fiu

Wi Tuegd 909.442.174 809.633.730

(Ruoligd 8.746.284.941 9.655.727.115

9.655.727.115 10.465.360.845




www .rhbg roup.com

17. HUIaNSUFUYINUAD

2020 2019
fiu fiu

WSUA 1 Jgneu 301.500.000.000 301.500.000.000
WufuIonzuy 79.400.025.000 -
380.900.025.000 301.500.000.000

18. (JUNIS9INIUATUIUNIY

& o o Qo ° &
MuEisy tmogeIfusiseInuaruunuw ud AN ti:

Suth 1 Jynsu 1.714.014.602 1.714.014.602
Wusuaznond 416.173.053 :
TSuH 31 Hiuon 2.130.187.655 1.714.014.602

@

19. A19SunsN(UY (AL A1vSunar1vany, Janu

2020 2019
v iy
2195U09NUY

MuEUNSNWLAINYNAT 31.330.454.617 35.815.209.614
UEVOSNULINNLIN 22.197.914.102 22.195.715.328
53.528.368.719 58.010.924.942

2189791909NUY
QILIUOSNUYININN (1.322.078.965) (1.005.572.645)
AWNILOSNULAINNEUINN (3.978.939.084) (6.319.350.303)
MUAIVOSNULIMUSHOL (15.132.178.649) (15.405.536.048)
mu%nUnsncﬁmmu‘ﬁ%umuﬁumcéﬂ (386.913.936) (410.839.918)
(20.820.110.634) (23.141.298.914)

a1sSvasny Az AruSuniarediiv, 06 32.708.258.085 34.869.626.028




- 5?2:{;3;320 windi 2: 2yuiioty

20. 319SUAINIVIU (AL aIVIBVNI 0B

2020 2019
HIT HIT
185U WIVIL (AT VIV

uSvawimssnnuUssulnndu 360.878.037 355.396.018
E‘TIZ.FH‘,UjJJﬁUTUlJ 243.296.470 454.393.027
QU LS 145.473.307 129.373.436
uSUnWIUILS LY 357.185.000 264.140.403
1.106.832.814 1.203.302.884

2182193INA1NIVJU (AT AIVIVVUI
IOV (58.408.199) (80.365.754)
euRuIMaiILuNleuty (182.345.073) (139.381.045)
(240.753.272) (219.746.799)
185U IVIL (AL aIVIBBNI, Jadi 866.079.542 983.556.085

21. Guidaw waz a1lza188u9299weiingan

2020 2019
HIT HIT
(s394 1z Guchiau 9.754.714.077 8.452.665.939
Guluiin 1.882.755.913 -
a178108 U929 juLiingIU 787.658.211 869.222.143

12.425.128.201 9.321.888.082




22. 2192999103 MN1V (S 192192 Y

2020 2019

nu nu

UPUMBLU] Qe UIQIENN 2.165.094.026 208.865.760
uMuaiivty 591.243.177 1.955.049.158
NURTUYZIOZI 368.979.859 581.532.579
LN 121 TUNIWSIW 385.266.993 405.161.697
AUPUOAS 332.091.992 253.524.423
Q1U1UFISWOLODIILLOON 219.071.106 254.272.192
uMuaiivty 287.853.000 284.300.000
muéwénaansmﬁSjmu 270.649.289 393.156.839
mu%nuéﬂcﬁumﬂj e hﬂéuﬁj 100.624.867 106.106.286
muéwﬁmmumz@m e Jﬁjoéejmmmzuz 173.107.997 326.391.041
uunWiUIL cay GusnoyunzuguIny 418.311.061 266.741.291
MUMU0172 18 TUNWUInwdug 116.362.328 148.478.149
5.428.655.695 5.183.579.415

23. 21921991N9VNI(I

9jm.unnzmwaoumsmsuauuuﬁuuj tanai 023 ajaum 28 .UjﬂSlJ 2016 gonlouuz mm:luwﬂcczhjam D10089MSY
Mia szJtJlJUjaU?a aﬂaumuuneunmmjww?u (Qz m’lquElﬂOZﬂﬂ’ltlJlJlﬂQuﬂﬂ 080011 20% (2019: 24%) 293;%‘50
fiqulnfinegusmsey.

2020 2019

nu nu
20fiunsusineuwIL ud (32.946.207.514) (5.149.878.289)
uMuHhugndn 26.901.632.043 37.296.866.157
usutivfinemsy (27.972.339.481) (15.259.530.479)
nata nsusInsu299d (34.016.914.952) 16.887.457.389

s1nsuaIBianIwdan19IN9VH(g - 4.052.989.773
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23. 21931991N9VNIA

o & > o o o ! &
A1z oUN9IFI9 NSV tAGILL:

2020 2019

iy iy

Tusuth 1 Jynsw 1.134.392.567 1.213.174.048
QeI INSUNN - 4.052.989.773
omnsuiaiiga: warnond (1.134.392.567) _ (4.131.771.254)
Suth 31 Fivor (Dngstiviud 15) - 1.134.392.567

WD 2020 DBuzanfiunsusiney 34.016.914.952 fu (33x1u08nusnUinfiunitanyemeudu 01070
our Hufigend 2021 2025, TnanSunwSus9]INouoUUNaNIoUlnIgIn 1NUSUSIMIVDLIUSOUKIDINS.

24. Zs]"lil!]’liJ?SjllJ"lI]ﬁlaiJUlﬁnjO?Sj
mzmmuﬁéu 100% cﬂm%ﬂesﬁmy N=UI0 89S Berhad  dzinn LAgy c§jtﬁb@éUﬂSj‘ﬂUﬂﬂuﬁﬂcﬁUjﬂu.

Daouawnudisuinonzunugudm i tuwingouiingogeilwinwwnidnned, Byzoulmucduiiudn.
830D5U NP U LINwINRoVRnJo2e).

cjUchnurJUaznmmamuccuwmeunou l:letJﬂﬂUquﬂ (e Gueandnindo, U]jl]’.UOlJU.LJZﬂﬂUuﬂlJ (ueandzdn iy
msajamvauwemmm.u way D8nmnenwen 1,60% m1 2,00% o (2019: 1,60% 1 2,00), Tne8ynugenuGu.
cjuwmumm ISomnenwaamn 2,50% m1 6,50% ad (2019: 2,00% 1 6,75%) 10833M1U1T00R €T FLNW
Gu. uendrindo anwodmuiigdiudauzoamibodufimn 1 @eu (53 36 Bou (2019: 1 m1 12 @o).
Uzduunudeutmonnuingouiinyogs) vendnt, mwd, war a1lgeuiinjoss) war AwsSuadudeudn
i

nsU101U 91SIT LAY (NsVIAIV YHSV)

n. Gudanidnaio

Sui 1 Jynsw 443.150.000.000 435.883.000.000
(Junfineueentuazmoa3d (82.014.867.691) -
210RURINNIVLINUTUCT UMM 19.550.000.000 7.267.000.000
tuduai 31 vivaa (Taszvivrad 14) 380.685.132.309 443.150.000.000
N9NUEN9JAIE 6.983.937.628 8.149.710.723
Muenenwe (Dnsvfivied 19) 15.132.178.649 15.405.536.048
2. viinsjdjwinzaaunjoz9
Sui 1 Jgnsw 26.763.256.772 27.463.709.610
(n"'l‘ca)/2’10zﬁm'mnwccandjm:']’umtﬁjuf.:cmn 1.180.687.510 (700.452.838)
tudwuai 31 vivoa (Jaszvivagd 14) 27.943.944.282 26.763.256.772

NIUSIREAT swift Qrecdou 182.345.073 139.381.045




24. 219NI1U29JWINIIVVINGI299

2020 2019
fiu fiu
wnzu1a1y 9uSAb - (n
n. GUYINNSUIAI18IY
Sudi 1 Jgnsy 670.052.101 135.451.276
(JuLndfineusentuanond 3.378.119.589 551.058.050
(ﬁ'l‘ca)/2’10m‘”m'mn’mcc:anu'jwcj‘”umriﬂjchmn 28.257.529 (16.457.225)
tudwuai 31 divaa (Taszdivagdi 5) 4.076.429.219 670.052.101
2020 2019
fiu fiu
g9oIVIBNIV (AL GUIMAVTIFIEY
2. (jueanananal
Sudi 1 Jnsw 2.018.326.232 4.048.807.743
(Ui tnSu/(nev)nond 1.247.541.713 (2.048.619.028)
210RUAINNIVEINYIUET U130 89.040.455 18.137.517
SR 31 diwon 3.354.908.400 2.018.326.232
QMEANSNCUL 66.474.558 15.969.349
a. Gulondu waz Guaosjoualmungnal
Sudi 1 Jgnsw 15.861.408.799 13.571.177.836
Fulondudidnee tuazmomyd 368.820.429 2.851.834.558
FutondutnSugrasinluaznond (1.382.774.778) (561.603.595)
WwSua 31 divol 14.847.454.450 15.861.408.799
MuSunene 578.079.515 563.758.796

Juchiou war Sudhlnmentaerdudue) 2oqusiingau 7.665.006.646 5.889.853.472
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25. WIALENWY (AL VUV
() wrazgndiviiy
e lndutunueiinduRndunramwou 500.000.000 fiu Symufinmmy gxiuduy] onounzuInIugarin
geiiucanii 56/3ws, 3350 7 fivor 2018, mruinw sussd Berhad Hudunsgtadufudio. nma Wngus
nInzRNUEURLGSRGewou 198.500.000.000 Fu, 897uiiu 79.400.000.000 Fiu &ncdlu 40% wuuin
Wugdncasludou D1 2020. nnatnSugunyofiuniudufivinnzugudinio nounwsesnoiiy@calnsy
szduani 83/naw, 335w 24 nuwa 2020.

o @ ° o o awu ° &
Tuduit 31 diuol 2020 nidnnnzaNMILEWURVDGIN W

@ o o o o a o hdo a ' ad &
Tuchounuwid 2020. TSt 31 divol 2020, nnsaiynwezylogeInudnfiuiidydercuulag:

S3conuu DD

siadia 2102 fiv D3y tase
31 fiwoa 2021 39.700.000.000 20% 3
31 fwoa 2022 39.700.000.000 20% 4th
31 o1 2023 39.700.000.000 20% 5th

119.100.000.000

(2) 33Guducse

o o o o o N o Ly Yo o o & @ o
Tudud 31 givor 2020, ;mgnzwiniuiauoudvusfio’dgnivtaduinTuluaiwgunuzniuiy, dsjdnnuiy
Ha s & ! o A > > o o a o o ade ‘a ° oY ' an o o & !
nheygnin HesgznawniudsuduEelmgnat.  Fwouuidndivdugidgutinualguuuds)fuduEs loen
anal «ndjulnuney WwSud 31 Fuor 2020.

fiu 5 111]

Juednefiudiug fggontg 8.475.434.281 15.969.497.226
Futonduhdsdindnig 11.990.000.000 10.043.000.000
20.465.434.281 26.012.497.226

(a) waazygndivma)sInsy

auuusmeu‘fu aUU 210 cﬂuajmaeueﬂj‘iw (e ,usmsunjaasjcﬂmwaiumw ((f~EA Uﬂ’ﬂuJJn"IJJUjiJCCUjU]”Ij
finowe way viivezeaiie (31DBuanwinoly, Nuisiiniiinolwmsiicanatgiiv aummjunaajmanmu
smsuummnumouau €ar NONYSUIARIJIMVOLIRANFoLe fiusney mufinowie B3xruinrifonidiu
v war ISomnenwy. edin3dieinacanougFnemeuty  sud a0 ehjcﬂmmmmumwnoﬁuwm
Uznndu). wuammcaeuuum‘mﬂ ey ‘Eﬂa’IQUS'mBUU‘IjZUjjUJ 9jmwmumaawasjgmumazjoymsmsu 83}
19700110, (Ioriigousiemeuiingoge) sinfinowefin  tweticnnmig way e dfunsfuiidugiarSidiv.







R”B‘ S 551 I 2: 300y Kz NUUENILE9JNLUINIL
Uzd 2020 - DEOEE “ U

E 4 1

21uHa Y
23z C ngwInI 9uSa Q10 fin
Jsiwnge gz : dudunazfonwnzunm v lnazdinnzuiniy
(anti 36 2ejmzmmuccdwj Uy Q9.
. (uedan
. Aulnndu
. Maziuongdann
. UINIWATMDI INAT €L NWUSNWSUY
griingu iy © owow.01, Boutanii. 008, nzslutngsy,
Ulwugren, ULasugoInIliy, sUU am.
(anazdindgm=in : 01-000194704515
Sutg ! https://www.rhbgroup.com/laos
Wnavdu : +856(21) 455116
Tnazg :  +856(21) 455112
NUIONZUIY : 380.900.025.000 riy
121 D IIFMle
m08.06, nzolugwayds, vwdnieds, (Deidlannzuss,
UEasLUY003I I, VU Q19.
Tnazdu : +856(21) 221010
Tnazgu : +856(21) 221013
2129 : 2=a63lon

m00.08, Nroluditon, vwediedn, (Degtgnad,
UEO9UYDI0JIIV, VU 19,
Tnazdu : +856(21) 773050




913589lay

gnonzsuiug

U380 wswgdiEnuda (219) 4170 Yao

Su 4, Bin nzwnm eSuesn, 33 neoliuaiugy, Qtwsed 7003
UEOSUNADIDIITY, JUU 210

Tnazdu : +856 (21) 222 718-9
lnazgiu : +856 (21) 222 723
Sutg : www.pwc.com/la

nuyazianzuiaiy 91SIs :

n.uznummu RHB JJUUmoomumcummmz‘mwmwJJ‘Z'a] ‘Ensumjoueu2jnjoahjmojmwmumenaumuom
znmtu.m UUEEC]JJITIIJ?J’IjC]j?lJ Li‘JlJn.uuamumumucjum‘fmamz}ncﬁuemuazsjuucmnmcatao gz Imwlo
Uamuznawmwusﬂaju (ASEAN). nuznvmmuuccswumu%m necdueiy s unUoAniwmnanIuEu Tuwn
tus1g3u (ASEAN) way Tw83AI, suu 3u wwlud 2020.

w“anmkumjzmn (e ITTUUQﬂﬂlJO‘TUﬂﬂlJEleZﬂﬂU‘“EUJO?Sjﬂ.UZﬂ“lJ’Iﬂ’IlJ JJE]OMJZUSJJEER]OZH'%‘“‘ZZﬂUQﬂ"llJEEﬂ
Qﬂﬂ”l tﬂUUWUUUO’I%ﬂ?ﬂ?Qjm U101,

nazfndingsjmzuiniutoSunwiuyloviivas wulooinducionunarAngonzgn G5:
NUUSNUNELINISISUINIRILSL
nuudnaunzuniuddvnazin ey 2wenwdeutnonazin
NUUANWNELINILSISUNLNLUINWRIUUE
NUUSNWNELINILCUUSODEAIL
NUUANWOWYEHU W

MUUANIWOIWYALANMIYE0

N=U191 91(SIU 1933170
N0 2SI A0 ( Mz ) cuunzLInYaERn 83971359 tar Fnnzuguty 8 YU Q0.

Nz LUU3E0 91550 unazindiRuniguzinn 100% drdufnwnuu sumasuedn sgiivsin
U”aﬂaumo ( sUdaw ) ww‘ﬁmnowwm“mmuma“no (anti 56/ NA 333U 7 znum 2018 Rz finazujuee)
NZUINWENY IUY Q12. caj‘cnsu‘fus UEJ"]O?J'IjC]j (AN 10/nma sentnlnuny mmwctm UU Q10 (ma )
(ar Wwnzugudwznn @and 213/2wn0 335U 30 Dogzws 2014.

ﬂ"’\ ° ! > e (=] d ° (=] (34 (l) ! it
JJNIJPIUOVO29JNCUINIY EE.UIJCZU]U&]ﬂﬂUZﬂ’IjO’IUﬂ’IUZﬂS‘UWﬂﬂU (¥ ﬂﬂlJU&]ﬂﬂlJﬂ’llJEjUZﬂﬂjO?SﬂlJ UU Q10.

mzmmucﬂm%wsg 100% tng RHB Bank Berhad Tutfieu twsn 2020, 39 0 Imul uRuIonzusutiudn
79.400.025.000 v ¢y, Z?]UﬁOZﬂsUjU?Sj@tUﬂﬂﬂU%j@U’%’m 301.500.000.000 fiu wacdu 380.900.025.000
(890 37.900.500 su (2019: 30.000.000 su), Dyuassuay 10.050 Hu.

@ o o o o &
USQUUU]SU%THJ 9USU A12MNO Yznaul 2 J12109U:

N=UI0 21SIY Q2 970 :nemmmzms Dnl03nwuSui 19 S9om 2016. mummmju U‘I]J:m’llJEZJ]JS
08,06, nzolugwyds, vwdnaie, (D998lannzueg, UzansuMNADIDIIIV.

nzuIn susad 20 110 212969 10n Do tnu3nwluSuii 26 Hineu 2018. 2riingwdsgouow.08, nroiu
G9tan, vwgzdiyedn, (dejtgnll, urasumanloIIv.
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Uzd 2020 - DEOEE “ U

vedansdiy (AL NIVYINIV29JNLUIaIY

nzwninfngdiuuiiedrluinsmuu Wsucuunzunmnazin, Bjouinwardufy ey Wsucuy
Auuandnindo, Undsdn car dinneagRiody Pnundy, 3ameRn car Sinwinding; nuusuduntavdy, tavrnag
way Yavzolnenyniy, SgmeRn car Sinwindingg lnudiladngzus war nowswinlunwsiaresiundy; dily
‘Emuamucc;}nujucjummjuucznn geousgnuudniwlunwleudy; war nwodnwamwnzunwsugitiosunwesyinen
NEUInIW ©g SUU 210 ( BOL ), diiinguime way 2121 luuzasunQojoyiiv.

sun tnUInugciusucuugiEves Snnzdivnmnzuin, Ny waz JunmwiInwanaisusy, BRoud:

e JUBQUINNZHIAILSY

e Jugiutinuzdn

e Jugfueainimin

o muloudu tay nmutandJuunndann

o SuBsdietiders

o SuBednAuiug

. fjuﬁccuuﬁ:ﬁﬂﬁn

. aucaazmuo;u

e MWUINMWAWNIA

<

dusjudannsuaarudy

fugnugaiu3y 299 RHB cuudiedluniwodnududniidusdnfinwg) sauingoulnnindsdnogr unegduna
Wnzwinwdevunnludy war 01729180199, FUn0dnunuduesinio war vz inundintui:

o U3NIweNtUEEN

o 03N ATM zmen 24 Solug

o 0 ATM

o Wrpenduinfisurdrdeu e unmwBnmunonn

o S1UNRendugugznuiy Py, Tn1enzdn § vin

dudjudandszéda
fugQueinuzdnes) RHB sauingostmminneulsuiiy eniotuifnmuideututiuesgmiue), D3nz2egmiu e

nugnsresianmiu § suzneunsudiod Wesulgmi. anwernuwdotnennuduesinsufioni taz HitnSuiy
Uzlmoncai:

o QUa9ITLBGULINEs NP Nosd uTuEAUYIMYLn

e U3nW ATM tzmen 24 8olu)

o 0 ATM

° ‘Eﬁé’uénmosnrﬁwﬁvﬁﬁmnh Antacduaiwsy, war Sunsnweidiuat@oy

o INRendugidugznuiy Ay, Inaenzdn § vn

dudjudaniniiiia
noudnmnenufitnidinnla war midenesytauzoaiigingy, Judiudindifo 2o RHB 33dudiedluniy

AU DULEnidy. 2ruIn@uggniuiiugegniy e tnSuustmuncdab:

o Sudnmnsnwuiiondnnla

o tauzthiniduen 1 @euduty

o inUrdtavdu car Yauze109930 36 (@ou

o InunewGudincuudnnstudin

e S1UNRendugugznuiy Py, Tngenzdn § vin

2)

MUV (az Mucandjujunindzanan

nulsufu 299 RHB s1uingoumiutuniulsusioiuesniuuioty gUd 210 was wWiolan d13dusdniivw waz I
nowwdsntu. zhmmmn?auﬁu‘tﬁéﬂjg}umu% war tnSuuzlnundin:
. zmjcaengnaUglun1Jr;jummjuvtznnm?acﬁuaou‘fmu
(] ﬂﬂmﬂUjJJ (¥ }4 ﬂﬂUE]T]'I]JU]CUlJ’I”?\LU




nuudniucanduunndenn 283 RHB  goulowmugauind war 2wdunimiuzannsy:  Guiv/Gulna
emed0/Guuan WensugrmuelnolunsIniesin Wdnmicanduidisndiniiazdutuin. srncanyIuiunesniy
tnnounorwzuinla cay nSudslnunahl:
uIniIU
Somuanusuiicuizdu

Jucsaclisnigdas
coundsniizuindutn, Sudsiundefivsits 293 RHB unucaloni sauinducizeySsututiuesgnmio

¢13099t0. UudluriiesySsutuiiugegniu way toSudrimuncdi:
393033083 70% 29iyunuSoy
tauzoaINWngIgncds 20 9
Somnsnwuiiondnnla

Sucsacingivivg

° o & Py Q o a @ & > o 2 ' '
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

www .rhbg roup.com

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central bank 4 471.154.975.668 497.024.321.105
Deposits with other banks 5 10.119.965.833 2.852.515.413
Loans and advances to customers 7 338.039.529.433 419.795.031.706
Right of use assets 8 8.368.365.032 9.482.773.765
Property and equipment 9 11.790.349.489 12.934.354.135
Intangible assets 10 695.961.108 654.914.048
Other assets 11 23.433.559.405 17.393.075.918
TOTAL ASSETS 863.602.705.968 960.136.986.090
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers 12 46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990
Deposits from other banks 13 30.000.659.125 116.000.739.125
Amount due to parent company 14 408.629.076.591 469.913.256.772
Other liabilities 15 13.770.628.121 16.325.640.594
Lease liabilities 16 9.655.727.115 10.465.360.845
TOTAL LIABILITIES 508.862.132.718 651.850.230.326
EQUITY

Paid-up capital 17 380.900.025.000 301.500.000.000
Legal reserve 18 2.130.187.655 1.714.014.602
(Deficits)/retained earnings (28.289.639.405) 5.072.741.162
TOTAL EQUITY 354.740.573.250 308.286.755.764
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 863.602.705.968 960.136.986.090

The accompanying notes on pages 67 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements. Independent audi-

tor's report - pages 116 to 117.
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Interest income

Interest expense

STATEMENT OF INCOME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

53.528.368.719

58.010.924.942

—(20.820.110.634) ____ (23.141.298.914)

NET INTEREST INCOME 19 32.708.258.085 34.869.626.028
Loan impairment charges 7 (46.315.549.355) (24.820.430.610)
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER LOAN IMPAIR-

MENT CHARGES (13.607.291.270) 10.049.195.418
Fee and commission income 1.106.832.814 1.203.302.884
Fee and commission expense (240.753.272) (219.746.799)
NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 20 866.079.542 983.556.085
Foreign exchange gain, net 1.400.174.004 3.331.581.341
Payroll and other staff costs 21 (12.425.128.201) (9.321.888.082)
General and administrative expenses 22 (5.428.655.695) (5.183.579.415)
Depreciation and amortisation charges 8,9,10 (3.751.385.894) (5.008.743.636)
TOTAL EXPENSES (20.204.995.786) (16.182.629.792)
LOSS BEFORE TAX (32.946.207.514) (5.149.878.289)
Income tax expense 23 - (4.052.989.773)
NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR (32.946.207.514) (9.202.868.062)

The accompanying notes on pages 67 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements. Independent audi-
tor’s report - pages 116 to 117.




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

www .rhbg roup.com

At 1 January 2019

Net loss for the year

As at 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2020
Additional paid-up capital
Net loss for the year

Legal reserve

As at 31 December 2020

(Deficits)/ re-

Paid-up capital Legal reserve tained earnings

LAK LAK LAK
301.500.000.000 1.714.014.602 14.275.609.224 317.489.623.826
- - (9.202.868.062) (9.202.868.062)
301.500.000.000 1.714.014.602 5.072.741.162 308.286.755.764
301.500.000.000 1.714.014.602 5.072.741.162 308.286.755.764
79.400.025.000 - - 79.400.025.000
- - (32.946.207.514) (32.946.207.514)
- 416.173.053 (416.173.053) -
380.900.025.000 _2.130.187.655 (28.289.639.405) 354.740.573.250

The accompanying notes on pages 67 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements. Independent audi-

tor's report - pages 116 to 117.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Section 2: General Information

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax (32.946.207.514) (5.149.878.289)
Adjustments for:
Loan impairment charges 7 46.315.549.355 24.820.430.610
Depreciation and amortisation charges 8,9,10 3.751.385.894 5.008.743.636
Foreign exchange gain, net (1.400.174.004) (3.331.581.341)
Interest income 19 (53.528.368.719) (58.010.924.942)
Interest expense 19 20.820.110.634 23.141.298.914
Net cash flows used in operations before changes in
operating assets and liabilities (16.987.704.354) (13.521.911.412)
Decrease/(increase) in statutory deposits with BOL 4 61.566.306.777 (17.949.150.757)
Decrease in loans and advances to customers 34.887.849.956 16.190.189.184
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (3.232.531.455) 4.114.275
Increase/(decrease) in deposits from customers 12 7.660.808.776 (610.711.118)
Decrease in deposits from banks 13 (86.000.080.000) (32.000.080.000)
(Decrease)/increase in deposits from parent com-
pany 14 (62.464.867.691) 7.267.000.000
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 1.246.676.975 (3.399.649.509)
Interest received 50.720.416.687 58.007.226.662
Interest paid (23.487.407.515) (21.384.786.323)
Income tax paid 23 (1.134.392.567) (4.131.771.254)
Net cash used in operating activities (37.224.924.411) (11.529.530.252)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment 9 (1.224.321.961) (1.271.675.787)
Purchases of intangible fixed assets 10 (250.107.000) (247.354.993)
Net cash used in investing activities (1.474.428.961) (1.519.030.780)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liabilities (869.224.344) (1.469.483.520)
Capital injection 79.400.025.000 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 78.530.800.656 (1.469.483.520)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 39.831.447.284 (14.518.044.552)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 6 52.667.181.827 62.916.448.008
Effect of foreign exchange difference 3.132.964.476 4.268.778.371
Cash and cash equivalents, ending 6 95.631.593.587 52.667.181.827

The accompanying notes on pages 67 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements. Independent audi-
tor’s report - pages 116 to 117.




1. GENERAL INFORMATION

RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao People’s Democratic
Republic (Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company by 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank operates
its banking business under the Law on Commercial Bank, No. 56/NA, dated 7 December 2018 and under the
regulations of Bank of Lao P.D.R (BOL). The Bank had received its Banking License No.10/BOL and Enterprise
Registration Certificate No.213/ERA dated 30 May 2014.

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide comprehensive banking and related financial services in Lao
P.D.R.

The Bank is 100% fully owned by RHB Bank Berhad. In April 2020, RHB Bank Berhad additionally paid up a cap-
ital of LAK 79.400.025.000, therefore the registered capital of the Bank increased from LAK 301.500.000.000
to LAK 380.900.025.000 with 37.900.500 (2019: 30.000.000) shares at issue price of LAK 10.050 per share.

The registered office of the Bank is at Unit No.1, House No. 008, Kaisone Road, Phonesa Ard Village, Lao P.D.R.

The Bank’s BOD has reviewed these financial statements and approved for their issuance on 5 March 2021.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below:
2.1  Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting regulations and notifica-
tions of BOL and accounting policies of the Bank. The accounting principles applied may differ from generally
accepted accounting principles adopted in other countries and jurisdictions. The accompanying financial
statements are not intended to present the financial position and financial performance in accordance with oth-
erjurisdictions. Consequently, these financial statements are addressed only to those who are informed about
the Bank’s accounting policies and the relevant accounting regulations and notifications of BOL.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions affect-
ing the amounts reported as assets and liabilities, the disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses in the reported periods.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, ac-
tual results may differ from those estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
2.2  Measurement and presentation currency

The Bank maintains its records in Lao Kip (LAK) and presents financial statements in LAK.
2.3 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than LAK at year end are translated into
LAK at exchange rates ruling on the statement of the financial report date. Income and expenses arising in
foreign currencies during the period are converted into LAK at rates ruling on the transaction dates. Gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of such monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of income when earned and incurred.

2.4  Financial instruments

The Bank’s significant financial assets and liabilities include cash and balances with central bank, deposits
with other banks, loans and advances, deposits from customers, deposits from other banks, amount due
to parent company, other assets and other liabilities. The accounting policies for the recognition and
measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies.
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2.5 Recognition of interest income and expense
Interest income recognition

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis and is recognised at the nominal interest rates stipulated
in the loan contracts with clients except in relation to non-performing accounts.

As per BOL guideline no. 334/AD, dated 11 March 2019, where an account becomes non-performing, the
recording of interest is suspended and interest income already recognised will be reversed. Interest income
will be recognised if accrued interest on non-performing loans will be subsequently collected. Customer
accounts are deemed to be non-performing where repayments are in arrears for more than three months
or 89 days.

Interest expense

Interest expense on deposits from customers and banks are recognised on an accrual basis and at the ap-
proved interest rates.

2.6. Recognition of fee and commission income
Fee and commission income from the various activities of the Bank is accrued using the following bases:

e Loan arrangement fees and commissions on services and facilities extended to customers are rec-
ognised on the occurrence of such transactions.

¢ Commitment fees and guarantees on services and facilities extended to customers are recognised as
income over the period in which the services and facilities are extended.

e Service charges and processing fees are recognised when the service is provided.

2..7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and short-term deposits maturing within
thirty (30) days.

2.8 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are originated by the Bank providing money to a customer for purposes other than
short-term profit taking. They are stated at the outstanding principal balances less an impairment allow-
ance for doubtful loans and advances, to reflect the estimated recoverable amount. Loans and advances,
except bank overdrafts, are shown exclusive of accrued interest receivable.

2. 9 Provision for credit losses

In accordance with regulation 324/BOL dated 19 April 2011, the Bank is required to classify loans and
create a provision for impairment losses. Accordingly, loans are classified into performing loans or non-per-
forming loans based on their payment arrears status and other qualitative factors. Loans classified as nor-
mal or pass (group A) and watch list or special mention (group B) are considered as performing loans. Loans
classified as substandard (group C), doubtful (group D) and loss (group E) are considered as non-performing
loans.

In accordance with the regulation 512/BOL dated 29 June 2018, the method of provision calculation men-
tions that banks can take into consideration the collateral value with a certain prescribed percentage,
indicated in the regulation, to be deducted from the loan outstanding before applying the provision rates.

Provisions are categorised as general and specific based on the loan classification. Below is the summary of
provision rates applicable for each loan classification as at the balance sheet date:




Group Category Number of days past due Provision rate
Performing (general)

A Normal or pass Within 29 days 0.5%
B Watch list or special mention 30 to 89 days 3%
Non-Performing (Specific)

C Substandard 90 to 179 days 20%
D Doubtful 180 to 359 days 50%
E Loss From 360 days 100%

2.10 Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Computer software licences are subsequently carried at cost less ac-
cumulated amortisation and impairment losses. These costs are amortised over the estimated useful life
of 5 years.

2.11 Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of income
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write down the cost of each
asset to its residual value over the estimated useful life, at the following annual rates:

Category Depreciation rate

Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Buildings and improvements 5%

Computer equipment 20%

Leasehold improvements are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each re-
porting period. There are no material adjustments arising from the review that would require disclosure in the
financial statements.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in
statement of income. At the end of the reporting period, the Bank assesses whether there is any indication of
impairment. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the asset is written down to its
recoverable amount.

2.12 Statutory deposits
Under the requirement of the Law on Commercial Bank No. 56/NA, dated 07 December 2018, commercial
banks are required to appropriate net profit to regulatory reserve fund, business expansion fund, and other

funds.

In accordance with (Revised) Enterprise law No. 46/NA, dated 26 December 2013 Capital Adequacy, the reg-
ulatory reserve fund shall be provided annually at 10% from profit after tax. When this regulatory reserve fund
accumulates half of registered capital, the company may suspend the deduction, unless otherwise provided by

Law of Limited Company.




oo
R”B‘ 2020 Section 2: General Information

2.13 Leases for lessee

Leases are recognised as a right of use asset and a corresponding liability at the date which the leased asset
is available for use by the Bank. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the rate cannot be really
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Bank, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security, and
conditions.

Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabil-
ity. Right of use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

2.14 Employee benefit
a) Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries paid, annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

b) Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank by the National Social Security
Fund Department which belongs to the Ministry of Labour and Social Welfare. The Bank is required
to contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying social insurance premium to the Social
Insurance Agency at the rate of 6.00% of employee’s basic salary on a monthly basis. The Bank has
no further obligation concerning post-employment benefits for the employees other than this.

c) Termination benefits

In accordance with Article 90 of the Amended Labour Law issued by the President of Lao People’s
Democratic Republic on 18 January 2014, the Bank has the obligation to pay allowance for employ-
ees who are terminated by dismissal in the following cases:

e  Compensation for the cancellation of employment contracts shall be 10% of the last salary
multiplied by the total number of months worked;

e  For unjustified termination of employment contracts in accordance with the Article 88 of the
Amended Labour law, compensation will be 15% of the last salary multiplied by the total num-
ber of months worked; and

e  Cancellation of employment contracts for reasons not specified in the Amended Labour Law,
the Bank must implement compensation in accordance with the agreement between the Bank
and the employee.




2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and when
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

2.16 Tax

Provision is made for taxation on the current year’s profits, based on the Tax Law governing taxation
within Lao P.D.R. In accordance with the Law on Income Tax No.067/NA, dated 18 June 2019, the Bank
is subject to 20% (2019: 24%) on total taxable profit, and profit taxes shall be paid every 20t of July of
the year and every 20t January of the following year.

Tax losses incurred in any tax year can be carried forward to offset against profit realised in the following
five tax years from the year loss was incurred subject to certification by the National Audit Authority or an
independent audit company and with the acknowledgement of the tax authorities. Upon expiration of such
period, any remaining loss not so deducted may no longer be deducted from profits.

2.17 Related parties

Enterprises or individuals that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are
under controlled by, or are under common control with, the Bank, including holding companies, subsidiar-
ies and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Bank. Associates and individuals owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Bank that gives them significant influence over the Bank,
key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Bank and close members of the family of
these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the rela-
tionship, and not merely the legal form.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The guidelines and policies adopted by the Bank to manage the risks that arise in the conduct of its busi-
ness activities are as follows:

3.1 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue and principal in the form of specific provisions as a result of
defaults by the borrowers or counterparties through its lending and investing activities. The primary expo-
sure to credit risk arises through its loans and advances. The amount of credit exposure in this regard is
represented by the carrying amounts of the assets on the balance sheet. The lending activities are guided
by the Bank’s credit policy to ensure that the overall objectives in the area of lending are achieved i.e.,
that the loans portfolio is strong and healthy and credit risks are well diversified. The credit policy doc-
uments are the credit control and recovery manual, credit operations manual, and credit policy manual.
Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Bank’s business. Management therefore carefully manages its
exposure to credit risk.

3.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse movement in the level of market prices or rates, the
two key components being foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate risk.

(i) Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk refers to the risk of adverse exchange rate movements on foreign
currency exchange positions taken from time to time. The Bank maintains a policy of not exposing
itself to large foreign exchange positions. Any foreign currency exchange open positions are moni-
tored against the operating requirements, predetermined position limits and stop-loss limits.
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(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels of
interest rate and shifts in the composition of the assets and liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed
through close monitoring of returns on investment, market pricing and cost of funds. The potential
reduction in net interest income from an unfavourable interest rate movement is monitored against
the risk tolerance limits set.

3.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the ability to maintain sufficient liquid assets to meet its financial commitments and
obligations when they fall due at a reasonable cost. The management of the Bank closely monitors all
inflows and outflows and maturity gaps. Movements in loans and customers’ deposits are monitored and
liquidity requirements adjusted to ensure sufficient liquid assets to meet its financial commitments and
obligations as and when they fall due.

a. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK

Cash on hand (Note 4.1) 16.912.658.373 11.536.192.040
Balances with central bank other than long term fixed
deposit and mandatory reserve deposits (Note 4.2) 68.598.969.381 38.278.474.374
Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 85.511.627.754 49.814.666.414
Long term fixed deposit and mandatory reserve depos-
its with central bank (Note 4.3) 385.643.347.914 447.209.654.691
471.154.975.668 497.024.321.105

4.1 Cash on hand

Cash on hand - LAK 7.515.212.500 5.974.025.000
Cash on hand - foreign currencies 9.397.445.873 5.562.167.040
16.912.658.373 11.536.192.040

4.2 Balances with central bank other than long term fixed deposit and mandatory reserve deposits

Demand deposit 68.598.969.381 38.278.474.374




4.3 Long term fixed deposit and mandatory reserve deposits with central bank

Compulsory reserve (i) 5.795.254.738 4.054.654.691
Special deposit (ii) 88.360.867 5.000.000
Long term fixed deposit (iii) 379.759.732.309 443.150.000.000
385.643.347.914 447.209.654.691

(i) These are deposits maintained in BOL as per BOL regulations. The balance is adjusted and calcu-

lated at 4% (2019: 5%) of LAK and 8% (2019: 10%) of other foreign currencies, such as Thailand Baht (THB)
and United States Dollar (USD), on the average balance of bank and customer deposits, such as savings
accounts, current accounts and term deposits as of the year. These deposits do not earn interest.

(ii) The Bank maintains an additional statutory capital deposit with BOL. This deposit amount is
considered as a guarantee for the operations. Per regulation No.01/BOL dated 28 January 2010, commer-
cial banks and foreign branch which have permanent office, no longer needs to appropriate a reserve of
25% of the registered capital and the investment capital. This deposit does not earn interest.

(iii) Long term fixed deposits maintained with BOL earn interest at 5.50% (2019: 4.50%) per annum
with a term of 3 years.

5. DEPOSITS WITH OTHER BANKS

Deposits with other banks are analysed as follows:

a) Analysis by institution

Balances with domestic banks

Banque Pour Le Commerce Exterieur Lao - Vientiane

Branch 2.846.144.413 1.710.432.251
2.846.144.413 1.710.432.251

Balances with overseas banks
RHB Bank Berhad - Thailand (Note 24) 4,076.429.219 670.052.101
JP Morgan - Vietnam 3.197.392.201 472.031.061
7.273.821.420 1.142.083.162

Included in cash and cash equivalents

(Note 6) 10.119.965.833 2.852.515.413




Analysis by currency
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Domestic banks

LAK 2.183.049.941 944.284.227
usD 290.541.360 537.561.334
THB 372.553.112 228.586.690
2.846.144.413 1.710.432.251

Overseas banks
uUsD 3.197.392.201 472.031.061
THB (Note 24) 4.076.429.219 670.052.101
7.273.821.420 1.142.083.162
10.119.965.833 2.852.515.413

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with central bank (Note 4) 85.511.627.754 49.814.666.414
Deposits with other banks (Note 5) 10.119.965.833 2.852.515.413
95.631.593.587 52.667.181.827

7. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to customers 365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

Provision (27.570.933.927) (8.674.352.883)

338.039.529.433 419.795.031.706




Loans and advances to customers are analysed as follows:

a) Analysis by currency

www .rhbg roup.com

LAK 312.376.049.143 369.163.028.817
usD 44.729.480.975 49.653.280.798
THB 8.504.933.242 9.653.074.974

365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

b) Analysis by status of loan

Performing loans 337.298.458.169 390.973.290.556
Non-performing loans 28.312.005.191 37.496.094.033
365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

c) Analysis by classification of BOL

Performing loans

Normal or pass 336.011.287.278 368.875.365.960
Watch list or special mention 1.287.170.891 22.097.924.596

Non-performing loans
Substandard - 6.871.516.193
Doubtful 3.844.821.351 23.028.534.938
Loss 24.467.183.840 7.596.042.902
365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

d) Analysis by relationship

Customers 365.610.463.360

428.469.384.589
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e) Analysis by economic sector

Industrial

Construction

Commercial

Transport and telecommunication
Service

Handicraft

Others

f) Analysis by resident status

24.888.511.770 25.020.644.875
26.534.322.369 41.257.081.911
101.366.456.741 103.626.034.616
14.167.998.599 14.688.109.293
142.104.630.462 167.374.892.516
1.671.811.858 2.047.715.035
54.876.731.561 74.454.906.343
365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

Resident

Non-resident

g) Analysis by security

324.614.026.565 380.151.755.869
40.996.436.795 48.317.628.720
365.610.463.360 428.469.384.589

Secured

365.610.463.360

428.469.384.589




7. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

The movement in the allowance for performing loans is as follows:

General provision

Beginning balance 2.507.419.119 2.454.106.540
Provision charged during the year 41.427.253.345 41.667.043.521
Reversal of provision during the year (43.743.208.082) (41.643.458.095)
Foreign exchange difference 1.527.311.740 29.727.153
At 31 December 1.718.776.122 2.507.419.119

Specific provision

Beginning balance 6.166.933.764 12.926.984.988
Provision charged during the year 94.150.851.286 85.353.351.436
Reversal of provision during the year (45.519.347.194) (60.556.506.252)
Utilisation for bad debt written off (27.971.071.273) (32.464.366.285)
Foreign exchange difference (975.208.778) 907.469.877
At 31 December 25.852.157.805 6.166.933.764

The breakdown of as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Performing loans (general)

Normal or pass 1.680.054.358 1.844.374.754

Watch list or special mention 38.721.764 663.044.365
Non-performing loans (specific)

Substandard - 538.216.001

Doubtful 2.196.884.225 4.645.604.055

Loss 23.655.273.580 983.113.708

27.570.933.927 8.674.352.883
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8. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Cost

At 1 January 14.768.349.908 14.768.349.908
Adjustments 59.590.614 -
At 31 December 14.827.940.522 14.768.349.908

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January (5.285.576.143) (4.133.617.535)
Charge for the year (1.173.999.347) (1.151.958.608)
At 31 December (6.459.575.490) (5.285.576.143)
Net book value at 31 December 8.368.365.032 9.482.773.765

The right of use assets recognised pertains to the lease of head office in Phonsa Ard and branch offices in
Sithan Neau and Dongdok.
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9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Building and improve-

ments

LAK

Office equipment

LAK

Movement of the balance of property and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Computer equip-
ment

LAK

Furniture and
fixtures

LAK

Motor vehicles

LAK

Cost
At 1 January 2019 13.426.454.248 629.472.287 9.254.136.461 1.134.320.387 2.040.651.792 26.485.035.175
Additions - 32.271.600 1.208.537.587 30.866.600 - 1.271.675.787
At 31 December 2019 13.426.454.248 661.743.887 10.462.674.048 1.165.186.987 2.040.651.792 27.756.710.962
2
£
S Accumulated depreciation
ﬂna At 1 January 2019 (2.144.513.769) (359.514.237) (7.264.642.844) (717.315.294) (1.329.897.577) (11.815.883.721)
m Charge for the year (1.287.362.770) (97.745.415) (1.161.192.086) (169.346.098) (290.826.737) (3.006.473.106)
(G
I3
(=
.m At 31 December 2019 (3.431.876.539) (457.259.652) (8.425.834.930) (886.661.392) (1.620.724.314) (14.822.356.827)
(7]
(%2]
Net book value at 31 December 2019 9.994.577.709 204.484.235 2.036.839.118 278.525.595 419.927.478 12.934.354.135
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Movement of the balance of intangible assets is as follows:

Cost

At 1 January 7.781.958.119 7.534.603.126
Additions 250.107.000 247.354.993
At 31 December 8.032.065.119 7.781.958.119
Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January (7.127.044.071) (6.276.732.149)
Charge for the year (209.059.940) (850.311.922)
At 31 December (7.336.104.011) (7.127.044.071)
Net book value at 31 December 695.961.108 654.914.048

11. OTHER ASSETS

Prepaid expenses (i) 3.335.318.379 1.610.361.405
Accrued interest and penalty receivable (ii) 17.603.709.593 14.795.757.561
Others (iii) 2.494.531.433 986.956.952

23.433.559.405 17.393.075.918

www .rhbg roup.com

(i) Prepaid expenses include advance payments for the electronic equipment insurance.

(i) Accrued interest receivable includes interest receivable from loans to customers and deposits with
other banks. This also includes penalty receivable for the overdue loans.

(iii)  These include bank supplies such as cheque books, passbooks and signature verification slips.




Section 2: General Information

Annual Report
2020

12. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Deposits from customers are analysed as follows:

a) Analysis by types of deposit accoun

Current deposits

Saving deposits

Term deposits

b) Analysis by currency

5.755.555.428 7.275.329.975
11.604.998.674 10.622.007.742
29.445.487.664 21.247.895.273
46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990

LAK
usbD
THB

¢) Analysis by maturity

12.426.600.996 11.705.794.670
29.449.842.427 24.131.007.282

4.929.598.343 3.308.431.038
46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990

Within 3 months
4 to 6 months

7 to 12 months
Over 12 months

17.360.554.102
14.012.319.009

7.737.025.460
7.696.143.195

25.466.422.434
2.816.603.259
5.178.122.127
5.684.085.170

46.806.041.766

39.145.232.990

d) Analysis by type of customer




Individual 36.472.868.272 28.610.007.809
Non-individual 10.333.173.494 10.535.225.181
46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990

e) Analysis by type of relationship

Staff 600.129.159 2.927.121.694
Customer 46.205.912.607 36.218.111.296
46.806.041.766 39.145.232.990

13. DEPOSITS FROM OTHER BANKS

a) Analysis by types of deposit account

Current deposits 659.125 739.125
Term deposits 30.000.000.000 116.000.000.000
30.000.659.125 116.000.739.125

b) Analysis by currency

LAK 30.000.659.125 116.000.739.125
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¢) Analysis by maturity

Within 3 months 659.125 739.125
4 to 6 months - 15.000.000.000
7 to 12 months 30.000.000.000 101.000.000.000

30.000.659.125 116.000.739.125

14. AMOUNT DUE TO PARENT COMPANY

Fixed deposits (i) (Note 24) 380.685.132.309 443.150.000.000
Intercompany payable (ii) (Note 24) 27.943.944.282 26.763.256.772
408.629.076.591 469.913.256.772

6))] Fixed deposits, denominated in USD, carry interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 3.75% (2019: 2.30% to
3.75%) per annum with terms ranging from 1 week to 3 years.

(ii) Intercompany payables include purchases of property and equipment initially made by RHB Bank Berhad
- Malaysia during the start-up phase of the Bank. The intercompany payable is repayable on demand.

15s. OTHER LIABILITIES

Current income tax liability (Note 23) - 1.134.392.567
Accrued interest payable 8.938.957.145 11.606.254.026
Accruals, provisions and other liabilities (i) 4.831.670.976 3.584.994.001

13.770.628.121 16.325.640.594

(i) Accruals, provisions, and other liabilities include banker’'s cheques, accruals for utilities, bonus, and
other liabilities to suppliers.




16. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities from property 9.655.727.115 10.465.360.845

(@) Scheduled repayments of lease liabilities are as follows:

Within one year 909.442.174 809.633.730
Beyond one year 8.746.284.941 9.655.727.115
9.655.727.115 10.465.360.845

17. PAID-UP CAPITAL

At 1 January 301.500.000.000 301.500.000.000
Additional paid-up capital 79.400.025.000 -
At 31 December 380.900.025.000 301.500.000.000

18. LEGAL RESERVE

The movement in legal reserve fund during the year is presented below:

At 1 January 1.714.014.602 1.714.014.602

Additional during the year 416.173.053 -

At 31 December 2.130.187.655 1.714.014.602
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19. NET INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE
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Interest income

Interest income from customers

Interest income from banks

31.330.454.617
22.197.914.102

35.815.209.614
22.195.715.328

Interest expense

Interest expense from customers
Interest expense from banks

Interest expense from parent company

Interest expense from lease liability

Net interest and similar income

53.528.368.719 58.010.924.942
(1.322.078.965) (1.005.572.645)
(3.978.939.084) (6.319.350.303)
(15.132.178.649) (15.405.536.048)
(386.913.936) (410.839.918)
(20.820.110.634) (23.141.298.914)
32.708.258.085 34.869.626.028

20. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income

Loan processing fees
Penalty fees
Commitment fees
Other fees

Fee and commission expense
Commission expenses

Wire transfer fees

Net fee and commission income

360.878.037 355.396.018
243.296.470 454.393.027
145.473.307 129.373.436
357.185.000 264.140.403
1.106.832.814 1.203.302.884
(58.408.199) (80.365.754)
(182.345.073) (139.381.045)
(240.753.272) (219.746.799)
866.079.542 983.556.085




21. PAYROLL AND OTHER STAFF COSTS

Salaries and wages 9.754.714.077 7.373.454.303
Bonus 1.882.755.913 1.079.211.636
Other staff costs 787.658.211 869.222.143

12.425.128.201 9.321.888.082

22. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Repair and maintenance

Insurance

Professional fees

Communication expense

Rental

Utilities

Security fee

Office stationery expense

Meal and travelling

Marketing and public relations

Board of directors’ fees and allowances

Other administrative expenses

2.165.094.026

1.955.049.158

591.243.177 581.532.579
368.979.859 405.161.697
385.266.993 253.524.423
332.091.992 208.865.760
219.071.106 254.272.192
287.853.000 284.300.000
270.649.289 393.156.839
100.624.867 106.106.286
173.107.997 326.391.041
418.311.061 266.741.291
116.362.328 148.478.149
5.428.655.695 5.183.579.415
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23. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

In accordance with the amended Lao Tax Law No. 023 dated 28 January 2016 stipulated by the President of the
National Assembly, applicable profit tax that should be applied to both domestic and foreign enterprises that
hold legal entities is 20% (2019: 24%) of total taxable profit income.

Loss before tax for the year (32.946.207.514) (5.149.878.289)
Add: Non-deductible expenses 26.901.632.043 37.296.866.157
Less: Non-taxable income (27.972.339.481) (15.259.530.479)
Taxable (loss)/profit for the year (34.016.914.952) 16.887.457.389
Income tax expense at applicable tax rate - 4.052.989.773

Analysis of the income tax payable is as follows:

At 1 January 1.134.392.567 1.213.174.048
Income tax expense - 4.052.989.773
Tax paid during the year (1.134.392.567) (4.131.771.254)
At 31 December (Note 15) - 1.134.392.567

In 2020, the Bank had taxable losses amounting to LAK 34.016.914.952 which can be carried forward to offset
against taxable profit to be realised for the next five tax years from 2021 to 2025, subject to certification by the
National Audit Authority with the acknowledgement from the tax authorities.

24. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS
The Bank is 100% owned by RHB Bank Berhad - Malaysia, which is the Bank’s ultimate controlling party.

A few numbers of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course of busi-
ness, which were mostly deposits.

Deposits from key management personnel comprised of savings and fixed deposits, all of which are unsecured.
Savings deposits are repayable on demand and carry interest rates ranging from 1.60% to 2.00% (2019: 1.60%
to 2.00%) per annum, depending on the currency. Fixed deposits carry interest rates ranging from 2.50% to
6.50% (2019: 2.00% to 6.75%) per annum, depending on the term and currency. Fixed deposits from key man-
agement personnel have terms ranging from 1 to 36 months (2019: 1 to 12 months).

The volume of related-party transactions, outstanding balances, at the year-end, and relating expense and
income for the year are as follows:




RHB Bank Berhad - Malaysia (Holding Bank)

(a) Fixed deposits
At 1 January
Deposits withdrawn during the year

Foreign exchange loss

As at 31 December (Note 14)

Interest payable

Interest expense (Note 19)

(b) Intercompany payable
At 1 January

Foreign exchange loss/(gain)

As at 31 December (Note 14)

Monthly swift payment

RHB Bank Thailand

(@)  Current deposit
At 1 January
Deposits placed during the year

Foreign exchange gain/(loss)

At 31 December (Note 5)

Director and key management personnel

(a) Deposits from customers
At 1 January
Deposits received/(withdrawn) during the year

Foreign exchange loss

As at 31 December

Interest expense

2020

443.150.000.000
(82.014.867.691)
19.550.000.000

2019

435.883.000.000

7.267.000.000

380.685.132.309

443.150.000.000

6.983.937.628 8.149.710.723
15.132.178.649 15.405.536.048
26.763.256.772 27.463.709.610
1.180.687.510 (700.452.838)
27.943.944.282 26.763.256.772
182.345.073 139.381.045
670.052.101 135.451.276
3.378.119.589 551.058.050
28.257.529 (16.457.225)
4.076.429.219 670.052.101
2.018.326.232 4.048.807.743
1.247.541.713 (2.048.619.028)
89.040.455 18.137.517
3.354.908.400 2.018.326.232
66.474.558 15.969.349

www .rhbg roup.com
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(b) Loans and advances to customers

At 1 January 15.861.408.799 13.571.177.836
Loans disbursed during the year 368.820.429 2.851.834.558
Loan repayments during the year (1.382.774.778) (561.603.595)
As at 31 December 14.847.454.450 15.861.408.799
Interest income 578.079.515 563.758.796
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 7.665.006.646 5.889.853.472

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Capital commitment

In order to meet the minimum capital requirement of LAK 500.000.000.000, as per revised Law on Commer-
cial Bank No. 56/NA, dated 7 December 2018, RHB Bank Berhad needs to inject additional capital. BOL has
already acknowledged the capital injection schedule of the remaining LAK 198.500.000.000 of which, LAK
79.400.000.000 representing the 40%, has already been injected in March 2020. The acknowledgement is
supported by the memo BOL No.83/CBSD, dated 24 February 2020. As at 31 December 2020, the approved
schedule of the remaining capital injection is as follows:

Schedule Amount in LAK  Percentage Period

31 December 2021 39.700.000.000 20% 3

31 December 2022 39.700.000.000 20% 4th

31 December 2023 39.700.000.000 20% 5t
119.100.000.000

(b) Credit facilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank had the contractual amounts of the Bank’s off-financial position, financial
instruments that commits it to extend credit to customers. Unutilised overdrafts are those credit limit provided to
customers but have not yet been withdrawn as at 31 December 2020.

Unutilised overdraft 8.475.434.281 15.969.497.226

Undisbursed loans 11.990.000.000 10.043.000.000

20.465.434.281 26.012.497.226




(c) Taxation contingencies

The taxation system in the Lao PDR is relatively new and is characterised by numerous taxes and frequently
changing legislation, which is often unclear, contradictory, and subject to interpretation. Often, differing
interpretations exist among numerous taxation authorities and jurisdictions. Taxes are subject to review
and investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose severe fines, penalties and
interest charges. These facts may create tax risks in Lao PDR substantially more significant than in other
countries. Management believes that it has adequately provided for tax liabilities based on its interpretation
of tax legislation. However, the relevant authorities may have differing interpretations and the effects could
be significant.
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General Information

Issuer

Type of Business

Headquarters
Registration Number
Homepage
Telephone

Facsimile

Registered Capital

Branches

Telephone

Facsimile

Branches

Telephone

References

Auditor

RHB Bank Lao Limited
The Company conducts banking business and is member No. 36
of The Bank of Lao PDR.

. Deposit

. Lending

o Foreign currency transaction

o Service between customers and other banking service

Unit No.01, House No. 008, Kaisone Road, Phonesa Ard Village,
Vientiane, Lao PDR.
01-000194704515

https:/www.rhbgroup.com/laos

+856(21) 455116

+856(21) 455112

LAK 380.900.025.000

. Sithan Neua Branch

Unit:06, Souphanouvong Road, Sithan Neua Village, Sikhottabong District, Vientiane
Capital, Lao PDR

+856(21) 221010
+856(21) 221013

: Dongdok Branch

Unit:08, Dongdok Road, Saphangmeuk Village, Xaythany District, Vientiane Capital,
Lao PDR

+856(21) 773050

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited.

4th Floor, ANZ Commercial Building, 33 Lane Xang Avenue, P.O. Box 7003

Vientiane, Lao PDR

Telephone: +856 (21) 222 718-9

Facsimile: +856 (21) 222 723

www.pwc.com/la
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RHB Banking Group

The RHB Banking Group has a proud history, having won many prestigious awards over the years since its establish-
ment. It is Malaysia’s fourth largest financial services group and enjoys a wide presence across the ASEAN region.
The Group has aspirations to emerge as one of the top three financial services groups in the ASEAN region and in
Hongkong by 2022.

The Group’s entire range of financial products and services are made available to its customers through its branches
as well as its online banking platform.

Our core businesses are streamlined into seven Strategic Business Groups (SBGs):
Group Retail Banking
Group Business & Transaction Banking
Group Wholesale Banking

Group Shariah Business

Group Insurance

Group International Business

RHB Bank Lao Limited

RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao People’s Democratic
Republic (Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company by 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank operates its
banking business under the Law on Commercial Bank, No. 56/NA, dated 7 December 2018 and under the regula-
tions of Bank of Lao P.D.R (BOL). The Bank had received its Banking License No.10/BOL and Enterprise Registra-
tion Certificate No.213/ERA dated 30 May 2014.

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide comprehensive banking and related financial services in Lao
P.D.R.

The Bank is 100% fully owned by RHB Bank Berhad. In April 2020, RHB Bank Berhad additionally paid up a capital
of LAK 79.400.025.000, therefore the registered capital of the Bank increased from LAK 301.500.000.000 to LAK
380.900.025.000 with 37.900.500 (2019: 30.000.000) shares at issue price of LAK 10.050 per share.

RHB Bank Lao Limited recently opened 2 branches open as follows:

The Sithan Neua Branch was established on 19t August, 2016. The office is located at Unit 06, Souphanouvong
Road, Sithan Neua Village, Sikhottabong District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

The new Dongdok branch was established on 26 January, 2018. The office is located at Unit 06, Dongdok Road,
Saphangmuek Village, Xaythany District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

Products and Services

The Bank is established to conduct banking activities, which include mobilizing and receiving short, medium and
long term deposit funds from various organizations and individuals; lending on a short, medium and long term basis
to various organizations and individuals based on the nature and repayment ability of the borrowers; conducting
foreign currency transactions; providing transaction services between customers; and other banking services as
approved by the Bank of Lao PDR (“BOL”"), through the Bank’s Head Office and a branch in Vientiane Capital city.

The Bank offers a full range of retail and commercial banking products and services, including:

Current Account

Savings Account

Fixed Deposit

Remittance and Foreign Exchange
Housing Loan
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e  Overdraft

e Term Loan

e  Revolving Credit

e Trade Finance Products and Services
Current Account

Our RHB Current Account is a powerful cash management tool as it can save you trips to the bank to pay those bills
and expenses. Manage your finances and enjoy these benefits:

Cheque book facility

24-hour ATM facility

Free ATM Card

Monthly statement for easy monitoring
Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB

Savings Account

Our RHB Savings Account paves the way to save for your dream home, your car, your child’s education or even a
computer. Grow your family’s finances and enjoy these benefits:

Manage your account easily with a Savings Passbook

24-hour ATM facility

Free ATM Card

Earn attractive interest rates - calculated daily, credited monthly
Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB

Fixed Deposit

Our RHB Fixed Deposit offers with attractive interest rates and choice of tenure and is an effective investment tool.
Build your finances and enjoy these benefits:

Earn attractive interest rates

Tenure from 1 month onwards

Short and long-term placements

Auto renewal

Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB

Remittance and Foreign Exchange

Our RHB Remittance can help you move your money within Lao PDR and around the world efficiently and securely.
Transfer funds with ease and enjoy these benefits:

e Choice of major currencies
e Competitive fees and charges

RHB Money Exchange Service allows you to buy and sell currencies such as LAK/USD/THB at the best possible
rates. Exchange your money with ease and enjoy these benefits:

e No fees
e Competitive exchange rates

Housing Loan

RHB Housing Loan, with flexible options, is the key to owning your dream house. Get the home of your dreams and
enjoy these benefits:




e Financing up to 70% of the property value
e Loan period up to 20 years
e Attractive interest rates

Overdraft

RHB Overdraft facility is designed to meet your financing needs. Expand your business and working capital, or build
your business with us and enjoy these benefits:

e Meet short term financing gap that may arise from the business operating cycle
e Attractive interest rates

Term Loan

RHB Term Loan, with many value added features and flexible options, enables you to start a new business, expand
your current business or provides working capital. Build your business with us and enjoy these benefits:

e Flexible repayment period of up to 10 years
e Attractive interest rates

Revolving Credit

RHB Revolving Credit is a short-term credit service designed to provide cash flow in a timely manner to make up
for periodic or seasonal fluctuations of your business. Suitable for businesses with fluctuating or seasonal incomes.
Manage your business with us and enjoy these benefits:

e Meet short term financing gap that may arise from the business operating cycle
e Attractive interest rates

Trade Finance Products and Services

RHB Trade Finance Products and Services help you in your import and export business; take the burden and worry
of non-delivery of goods away from you. Build your business by letting our expertise work for you. Bank with us, we
are here to get things done and help you enjoy these advantages:

Easy and fast process

Help to collect your expert proceeds expeditiously
Help to cut down the risk of business

Competitive commission rates / charges

Flexible term of payments
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Extra-Curricular Activities of RHB Bank Lao Limited

Extra curriculum of RHB Bank Lao Limited in 2019
Activity: “RHB Bank Lao support the local community during the Covic-19 outbreak”
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Activity: “On 11 November 2020, RHB Banking Group has donate USD7,000 to help flood donation victims in
Savannakhet Province”
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Market and Competitive Conditions

The COVID-19 outbreak has intensified the growth slowdown, plunging Lao PDR’s economy into its first recession
since the Asian financial crisis in 1998. The World Bank estimates that Lao PDR’s growth will decline drastically in
2020 to -0.6 percent. The pandemic has mainly affected labor intensive service sectors and those linked to global
and regional value chains, having an especially negative effect on tourism-related services, wholesale and retail
trade, and manufacturing. It has affected livelihoods and poses a serious risk to Lao PDR’s progress on poverty re-
duction. The sharp drop in domestic revenue mobilization has led to worsening of the fiscal situation and a growing
debt problem. Under the baseline scenario, Lao PDR’s GDP growth rate is projected to rise to 4.9 percent in 2021,
assuming that the domestic spread of the virus is brought under control, that the government’s small but targeted
COVID-19 fiscal support measures are implemented effectively, and that there are no new interruptions to the
global economy recovery. The anticipated recovery will be supported by investment in infrastructure, and growth
in services, exports, and private consumption. However, risks are tilted heavily to the downside, as unpredictable
evolution of the pandemic and therefore its threats to macroeconomic stability could delay the resumption of regular
economic activity. Under the downside scenario, which assumes some of these risks are realized, the growth rate is
estimated to rebound to only 2.8 percent in 2021.

Risk Management Policies

The Bank’s business involves taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing them professionally. The core func-
tions of the Bank’s risk management are to identify all key risks for the Bank, measure these risks, manage the risk
positions and determine capital allocations. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to
reflect changes in markets, products and best market practice.

1. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue and principal in the form of specific provisions as a result of defaults by
the borrowers or counterparties through its lending and investing activities. The primary exposure to credit risk
arises through its loans and advances. The amount of credit exposure in this regard is represented by the carrying
amounts of the assets on the statement of financial position. The lending activities are guided by the Bank’s credit
policy to ensure that the overall objectives in the area of lending are achieved i.e., that the loans portfolio is strong
and healthy and credit risks are well diversified. The credit policy documents the lending policy, collateral policy and
credit approval processes.

2. Market Risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate
and currency all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility
of market rates or prices such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

3. Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Foreign currency exchange risk refers to the risk of adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency exchange
positions taken from time to time. The Bank maintains a policy of not exposing itself to large foreign exchange posi-
tions. Net opening position is being monitored on a daily basis to check how much of foreign currency position there
is to reduce risk and comply with regulations. Any foreign currency exchange open positions are monitored against
the operating requirements, predetermined position limits and stop-loss limits.

4. Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase
as a result of such changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The potential re-
duction in net interest income from an unfavorable interest rate movement is monitored against the risk tolerance
limits set. The Bank regularly monitors its interest rate risk to ensure that there are no undue exposures to significant
interest rate movement.

5. Liquidity Risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due as a result of customer
deposits being withdrawn, cash requirements from contractual commitments, or other cash outflows, such as debt
maturities or margin calls for derivatives.

Such outflows would deplete available cash resources for client lending, trading activities and investments. In ex-
treme circumstances, lack of liquidity could result in reductions in the statement of financial position and sale of
assets, or potentially an inability to fulfill lending commitments. The risk that the Bank will be unable to do so is inher-
ent in all banking operations and can be affected by a range of institution-specific and market-wide events including,
but not limited to, credit events, merger and acquisition activity, systemic shocks and natural disasters.
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Board of Directors and Organization Structure

The Bank’s Committees

(1) Board of Directors

As of 31 December 2020, the Board of Directors of RHB Bank Lao Limited (“RHBBLL") consisted of five members as
follows:
No. Member Position
1 Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong Independent, Non-Executive Chainman

Mr. Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed Independent, Non-Executive Deputy Chain-

man
3 Ms. Samvutheary Mao Independent, Non-Executive Director
4 Mr. Adissadikin Ali Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director

5 Mr. Ling Chii Hian
The Company Secretary is Mr. Azman Shah Md Yamam
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Profile of the Board of Directors

Chin Yoong Kheong (“Mr. Chin") was ap-
pointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Chairman of RHBBLL on 22 July 2019. He is
the Chairman of the Board Nominating & Re-
muneration (Governance) Committee, Mem-
ber of the Board Audit Committee and Board
Risk Committee.

Mr. Chin was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of RHB Investment
Bank on 1 August 2016. Subsequently, on 30
September 2016, he was appointed as the
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director.
He also serves as the Chairman of RHB In-
vestment Bank’s Board Risk Committee.

Mr. Chin holds a Bachelor of Arts with Hon-
ours in Economics from the University of
Leeds and is a Fellow of the Institute of Char-
tered Accountants in England and Wales. He
is also a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Malaysian
Institute of Accountants. Mr. Chin has retired
as a partner of KPMG, one of the leading
accounting firms on 31 December 2013, af-
ter having served the firm for more than 34
years in the United Kingdom, Vietnam and
Malaysia. Mr. Chin’s vast experience covers
Independent Non-Executive Chairman business solutions in areas such as strategy,
Malaysian human resources, performance improvement
to the public and infrastructure sector, con-
sumer and industrial markets, and financial
services industry. He was responsible for es-
tablishing the KPMG practice in Vietnam and
subsequently headed KPMG's consulting
practice for more than 7 years.

Mr. Chin’s other directorships includes RHB
Asset Management Sdn Bhd, RHB Islamic
International Asset Management Berhad,
RHB Securities (Thailand) Public Company
Limited, RHB Securities Vietham Compa-
ny Limited, RHB Bank (Cambodia) Plc, RHB
Securities (Cambodia) Plc and Ayer Holdings
Berhad, a company listed on the Kuala Lum-
pur Stock Exchange.
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Independent Non-Executive Deputy Chairman
Malaysian

Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed (“Mr. Aziz Peru”)
was appointed as an Independent Non-Ex-
ecutive Director of RHBBLL on 11 January
2017 and was subsequently appointed as
RHBBLL's Independent Non-Executive Dep-
uty Chairman of RHBBLL on 23 April 2020.

He also serves as the Chairman of Board Au-
dit Committee and a Member of Board Risk
Committee of RHBBLL.

Mr. Aziz Peru attended various training pro-
grammes at the Harvard Business School and
Pacific Bankers Rim programmes in the Unit-
ed States of America.

Mr. Aziz Peru is currently the Chief Executive
Officer/Director of As-Salihin Trustee Ber-
had, a trust company specializing in Islamic
estate planning. He held various Senior Man-
agement positions in the banking industry
with almost 30 years in an accomplished ca-
reer track spanning management of branch
network and retail banking. He spent most
of his working years at Malayan Banking
Berhad, where his last position was Gener-
al Manager, Consumer Banking Division. He
was also formerly the Senior General Man-
ager of AmBank Berhad from 2002 to 2005.
During his tenure in the banking industry, he
was appointed as the Chairman of the Rules
Committee of the Association of Banks of
Malaysia and held several other key positions
including as a Board Member of Mayban
Property Trust and Mayban Trustees Bhd.

Mr. Aziz Peru’s other directorship in public
companies include RHB Bank (Cambodia)
Plc.
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Samvutheary Mao (“Ms. Samvutheary”) was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of RHBBLL) on 6 May 2019. She
was appointed as the Chairman of Board Risk
Committee on 23 April 2020 and serves as a
Member of the Board Nominating & Remu-
neration (Governance) Committee and Board
Audit Committee

Ms. Samvutheary is the Founding Partner and
Managing Director of HML. She specializes in
banking, commercial transaction, land trans-
action, employment, telecommunication, ho-
tel and resort, mediation, litigation and good
networking with all sectors involved includ-
ing government officers. With more than 20
years of experience with a PhD Degree in Po-
litical Science, Master of Law, she is regarded
as an eminent attorney in Cambodia with val-
ued knowledge and experience to effectively
resolve clients’ issues.

As a corporate and litigation attorney, Ms.
Samvutheary represents clients in hundreds
of complex cases both for private and pub-
lic entities. She had successfully represented
various banks in recovery of large US dollar
Cambodian loans, and was appointed as a senior lawyer
to various commercial banks. In addition, she
had represented the largest Cambodian en-
tertainment company for its Initial Public Of-
fering (IPO) valued at USD 369 million for its
listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
became the first Cambodian company to is-
sue offshore bonds raising USD 300 million.

Independent Non-Executive Deputy Director

Ms. Samvetheary’s other directorships in-
clude RHB Bank (Cambodia) Plc and RHB Se-
curities (Cambodia) Plc.
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Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director

Malaysian

Dato’ Adissadikin Ali (“Dato’ Adissadikin”)
was appointed as the Non-Independent
Non-Executive Director of RHBBLL on 15
October 2019. He is a Member of the Board
Nominating & Remuneration (Governance)
Committee.

Dato’ Adissadikin was appointed as the
Managing Director/ Chief Executive Offi-
cer (“MD/ CEQ”) of RHB Islamic Bank on 1
August 2016. He started his career with the
Renong Group of Companies in various po-
sitions within the Group. In 1999, he joined
Pengurusan Danaharta Nasional Berhad, the
National Asset Management arm which was
established as a pre-emptive measure to
avert the deterioration of Malaysia's bank-
ing industry. After four years with Danaharta,
Dato’ Adissadikin joined Bank Muamalat
Malaysia Berhad as Special Assistant to the
Chief Executive Officer.

Thereon, Dato’ Adissadikin accumulated ex-
perience in formulating and executing corpo-
rate strategic plan, business process re-engi-
neering as well as bank-wide transformation
programme. Dato’ Adissadikin was involved
in the turn-around of Bank Islam Malaysia
Berhad.

He was appointed the President/ Chief Ex-
ecutive Officer of Export-lmport Bank of
Malaysia (EXIM) in October 2010 and served
until June 2015. Prior to joining RHB Bank-
ing Group in August 2016, he was the Chief
Executive Officer at Alkhair International Is-
lamic Bank Berhad, the first foreign Islamic
Bank in Malaysia.

Dato’ Adissadikin’s other directorships in-
clude RHB Bank (Cambodia) Plc and RHB Se-
curities (Cambodia) Plc.
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Ling Chii Hian (“Mr. Danny Ling") was ap-
pointed as the Managing Director/Chief Ex-
ecutive Officer (“MD/CEQ”) of RHBBLL on
15 October 2019.

Mr. Danny Ling joined RHB Bank on 20 Feb-
ruary 2014 for the position of Chief Execu-
tive Officer of RHBBLL In line with the Group
Mobility Policy, Mr. Danny Ling had com-
pleted the 5-year tenure in Lao on 31 Octo-
ber 2020 and had since relocated to RHB's
Head Office in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia as the
Head, SME Business Development.

Mr. Danny Ling has a total of more than 30
years of working experience in the Financial
Services Industry and with significant expo-
sure in consumer, business and corporate
banking. Prior to joining RHB, he was the
Chief Executive Officer of another Financial
Institution in Laos.
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Key Responsibilities

The Board is charged with leading and governing the Company in an effective, efficient and responsible manner. The
Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their responsibilities to shareholders/stakeholders and the man-
ner in which the affairs of the Company are managed. They discharge their roles and duties with integrity, honesty
and professionalism within the ambit of the law to serve the interest of the Company’s shareholders and stakehold-
ers, and ensure the Company adheres to the highest standards of corporate governance.

The Board assumes an active role and takes full responsibility for key strategy setting, business plans, financial objec-
tives and major capital and operating budgets. While the Board scrutinizes the frameworks and policies proposed by
the Management, the Board also monitors the Management’s performance in implementing the adopted strategies
as well as provides direction and advice to ensure the achievement of the objectives.

Rights and Duties of the Board of Directors
Without limiting the generality thereof, the Board of Directors has the following rights and duties:

1. To elaborate on and implement resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting;

2. To determine the strategy, policy, administrative management, risk management, audit and other policies related
to the bank business operations;

3. To approve the Rules and Operations manuals recommended by the Board of Directors Committees;

4. To be responsible for commercial bank activities in accordance with relevant law and regulations;

5. To receive the information promptly and properly on the credit, important risk, loan and asset classification, loan
provision and asset depreciation and risks arose by asset which may causes damage to a commercial bank from
time to time;

6. To explain, answer [question related], and provide detailed information on the operations at the shareholders’
meeting;

7. Torecommend the division of profits into funds and the allocation of dividends at the shareholders’ meeting for
consideration;

8. To propose business plans at the shareholders meeting for consideration and approval;

9. To appoint the board of director committee;

10. To appoint or remove the managing director

11. To approve the appointment of deputy managing director(s), based on the recommendation of the managing
director;

12. To report on the operations of the Bank at the shareholders’ meeting;

13. To exercise such other rights and perform such other duties as provided in the charter of the Bank.

Meetings & Minutes

e The Board shall meet at least once in every three (3) months, or more as and when/ required.

e Subject to relevant laws and guidelines, the quorum of the meetings shall not be less than half of the total num-
ber of the Directors.

e The Board may convene meetings at any place in Lao or any other country

e The Board is also allowed to approve resolutions by way of circulation

Board Audit Committee

As of 31 December 2020, the Board Audit Committee consisted of three members as follows:

No. Member Position
1 Mr. Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed Chairman
2  Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong Committee
3 Ms. Samvutheary Mao Committee

The Company Secretary is Mr. Azman Shah Md Yaman
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Key Responsibilities

1.

10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.

21.

The Board Audit Committee (“the Committee’) is directly accountable to the Board and the Board will con-
tinue to be accountable for all matters relating to RHBBLL. Whilst the Committee reports to the Board, all
minutes are to be tabled to RHB Bank Berhad ‘s Board Audit Committee as part of the Group oversight require-
ments. Audit reports will also be given as and when required by RHB Bank Berhad’s Board Audit Committee.

To ensure that the internal audit department is distinct and has the appropriate status within the overall
organizational structure for the internal auditors to effectively accomplish their audit objectives.

To review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk management processes including the scope of the
internal audit program and the appropriateness of the risk assessment methodology employed to determine
the frequency and scope of audits.

To ensure that the reporting relationship of the internal audit staff do not impede the exercise of indepen-
dent judgement by the internal auditors. In particular, the reports of internal auditors should be subject to the
clearance of the Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer or any Executive Directors.

To ensure that all findings and recommendations are resolved effectively and in a timely manner.

To make appropriate public disclosure of the terms of reference and the activities of the Committee in the enti-2
ty’s financial statements, if required.

To review quarterly results and year-end financial statements and to recommend the same to the Board for
approval whilst ensuring that they are prepared in a timely and accurate manner complying with all applicable
accounting and regulatory requirements and are promptly published.

To regularly review the adequacy of provisions made and to recommend the same to the Boards for approval.

To review any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise, including any transac-
tion, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity.

To review with the external and internal auditors whether the employees of RHBBLL have given them appro-
priate assistance in discharging their duties.

To review the adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the internal audit function and that it has the
necessary authority to carry out its work.

To review and approve the internal audit plan, audit charter and the budget for the audit plan.

To ensure that internal audit staff receives necessary training to perform audit work. There shall be a pro-
gram of continuing education and training to enable the internal auditors to keep abreast of business trends
and latest developments at both the institution and industry levels, as well as to enhance technical skills
required to effectively support the audit function.

To appraise the performance of the Head of Internal Audit and to review the appraisals of senior staff members
of the internal audit function.

To approve any appointment or termination of the Head of Internal Audit or senior staff members of the in-
ternal audit function and to review any resignations of internal audit staff members and provide resigning staff
members an opportunity to submit reasons for resigning, where necessary.

To review with the external auditors, the nature and scope of their audit plan, their evaluation of the system
of internal controls and their management letter and discuss any matter that the external auditors may wish to
raise in the absence of management, where necessary.

To recommend to the Board on the appointment and the annual reappointment of the external auditors and
assessing their audit fees, after taking into consideration the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors and the cost effectiveness of their audit.

To discuss and review with the external auditors any proposal from them to resign as auditors.

To investigate reasons for any request made by management to dismiss the external auditors, or any resigna-
tion by the external auditors. The results of the investigation shall be disclosed to the full Board together with
the recommendations on proposed actions to be taken.

To review non-audit services rendered by the external auditors together with the related fees and thereafter
approving or recommending the same to the Board for approval (whichever relevant), in accordance with the
Group Policy on Non-Audit Fees payable to the external auditors.

To review the co-ordination of audit activities between external and internal auditors.

109




Annual Report

22.

23.

24.

To review inspection and examination reports issued by any regulatory authority and to ensure prompt and
appropriate actions are taken in respect of any findings.

To review the minutes of meetings of management audit committees or other relevant committee (if any)
within RHBBLL to the extent permitted by the relevant regulatory authorities and be satisfied that all matters
arising therefrom are being appropriately addressed by these management audit committees.

To perform any other functions as authorized by the Boards.

Rights and Duties of Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee shall at the minimum have the following rights and duties:

1. To establish and amend policies regarding financial report and internal controls system inspection, accounting,
information system including an internal audit of commercial bank in order to present to the Board of Directors
for approval;

2. To give guidance on establishment and amendment of manuals and present to the Board of Directors for approv-
al and to monitor, inspect and report to the board of director about the implementation of the manuals;

3. To inspect the operations activities of a commercial bank including execution of business plan, resolutions of
Board of Directors’ meeting in accordance with the manual and internal rules and law;

4. To determine qualification requirement of internal auditors;

5. To approve the engagement or termination of an external audit firm and determine the scope of the audit as
agreed by the Board of Directors;

6. To monitor and assess the quality of service of the external audit company, independence in relation to all rela-
tionships between the independent external auditor and the Bank;

7. To request for the annual audited financial report and quarterly financial report, internal audit report and external
audit report with relevant management and the independent external auditor for checking and discuss on the
matters;

8. To provide advice for audit related matters

9. To monitor and inspect the administrators’ efforts to correct deficiencies described in an audit examination;

10. To discuss with legal consultants, accounting consultants and other advisors as agreed by the board of director;

11. To deliver opinions on the issues raised by the Board of Directors and administrators

12. To summarize and evaluate its annual performance;

13. To report its performance to the Board of Directors from time to time;

14. Perform rights and other related duties determined in law and regulations.

Meetings & Minutes

e The Committee shall preferably meet at least once every two months or whenever deemed necessary at the
discretion of the Chairman
e The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or 50% of the total members, whichever is
higher;
e The committee may convene meetings at any place in Lao or any other country
e The committee is also allowed to approve resolutions by way of circulation
e Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the Committee shall be decided
by majority of the members present; and
e The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible for:
- Drawing up the agenda with the concurrence of the Chairman
- Writing and safe-keeping the minutes of meeting and submission to Board.
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(2) Board Risk Committee

As of 31 December 2020, the Board Risk Committee consisted of three members as follows:

No. Member Position
1 Ms. Samvutheary Mao Chairman
2  Mr. Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed Committee
3  Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong Committee

The Company Secretary is Mr. Azman Shah Md Yaman

Key Responsibilities
Risk Strategy

1. To provide risk oversight and guidance to RHBBLL's business operations through the support of an effective
internal risk management framework and sound risk strategies.

2. Toreview and recommend, risk management policies and procedures, controls and systems of RHBBLL in line
with the approved risk management philosophy and strategy of RHBBLL and RHB Group.

3. To ensure that RHBBLL's business and operations are in line with RHBBLL's and the overall RHB Group'’s risk
strategy and profile

4. To deliberate and assess the nature and materiality of the risk exposures and its impact on RHBBLL's capital
and business.

5. Recommending New/Existing products with material variations in product features to the Board for approval.

Risk Organization

1. Tooversee the overall management of risks covering market risk management, asset and liability management,
credit risk management, operational risk management and compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

2. To establish clear and independent reporting lines and responsibilities for the overall business activities and
risk management and control functions.

3. To cultivate a proactive risk management and compliance culture within RHBBLL, so that risk management
processes are applied in the day-to-day business and activities.

4. To supervise the independent review of the RHBBLL risk management infrastructure, capabilities, environ-
ment and processes where necessary.

Rights and Duties of Board Risk Committee

To avoid or reduce risks that may occur to the Bank, the Board Risk Committee shall, at the minimum, have the fol-
lowing rights and duties:

1. To establish and amend policies regarding the risk management of commercial bank and recommend to the
Board of Directors for approval;

2. To give guidance on establishment and amendment of manuals and present to the Board of Directors for ap-
proval and to monitor, inspect and report to the board of director about the implementation of the manuals;

3. To determine the eligible requirement of the risk management officer;

4. To deliver opinions on any matters submitted to it by the Board of Directors or that it wishes to address;
5. To summarizes and evaluate its annual performance; and

6. To report its performance to the board of director from time to time;

7. To perform rights and other related duties determined in law and regulations.
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Meetings & Minutes

e The Committee shall preferably meet at least once every two months or whenever deemed necessary at the
discretion of the Chairman

e The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or 50% of the total members, whichever is
higher;

e The committee may convene meetings at any place in Lao or any other country

e The committee is also allowed to approve resolutions by way of circulation

e Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the Committee shall be decided
by majority of the members present; and

e The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible for:
- Drawing up the agenda with the concurrence of the Chairman
- Writing and safe-keeping the minutes of meeting and submission to Board.

(3) Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee
As of 31 December 2020, the Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee (“BNR(G)C")

consisted of three members as follows:

No. Member Position
1 Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong Chairman
2 Ms. Samvutheary Mao Committee
3  Mr. Adissadikin Ali Committee

The Company Secretary is Mr. Azman Shah Md Yaman

Key Responsibilities
The terms of reference of the RHBBLL's BNR(G)C with regard to its nomination roles are as follows:-

1. To establish a ocumented procedure for the appointment of directors, board committee members and key
senior management officers.

2. To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, minimum requirements for directors and key senior man-
agement officers.

3. To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, the optimal size and mix of skills to ensure efficient
operation of the Committee.

4. To assess and recommend for Board'’s approval, new and reappointed nominees for directorship, board com-
mittee members and key senior management officers.

5. To establish and recommend for Board approval, the expectations on time commitment for the board mem-
bers and protocols for accepting new directorships.

6. To establish and recommend for Board'’s approval, a mechanism for the formal assessment of the Board’s
performance as a whole, each Director and key senior management officers.

7. To review performance assessment results and recommend to the Board, the removal of any director or key
senior management officer found to be ineffective, errant and negligent in the discharge or responsibilities.

8. To ensure directors and board committee members receive appropriate induction and continuous training
programs for closure of skills gaps and keeping abreast with latest developments.

9. To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, the criteria assess independence of independent directors.

10. To assess annually the independence of independent directors and that the directors and officers of RHBBLL
meet the identified independence criteria and are not disqualified under relevant regulations.

11. To review and recommend for Board’s approval, any significant change in the organization structure of the
RHBBLL.

112




12.

13.

14.

www .rhbg roup.com

Whenever key expatriates are employed, to ensure there is in place a process for the transfer of expertise
and skills from the expatriates to the staff of RHBBLL.

To recommend to the Board, a policy regarding the period of service for the Executive and Non-Executive
Directors.

To perform any other functions as defined by the Board.

Reporting Structure

The Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee (‘the Committee”) is directly accountable to
Board and the Board will continue to be accountable for all matters relating to RHBBLL. Whilst the committee re-
ports to the Board, all minutes are to be tabled to RHB Bank Berhad’s Board Nominating & Remuneration Commit-
tee as part of the Group oversight requirements.

The terms of reference of the BNR(G)C with regard to its remuneration roles are as follows: -

1.

To ensure the establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing Remuneration and HR
policies, strategies and frameworks for directors, key senior management officers (which entails MD/Chief
Executive Officer and persons as may be determined by the Committee) and staff.

To recommend remuneration strategies, policies & framework and specific remuneration packages for di-
rectors, board committee members and key senior management officers, which would be (where relevant):
a. Market competitive and in support of the Group’s culture, vision, objectives and strategy;

b. Reflective of the responsibilities and commitment required;
c. Sufficient to attract and retain quality people but yet not excessive;

d. Performance driven with sufficient emphasis on long term development of RHBBL to avoid excessive
short-term risk taking

The framework should cover all aspects of remuneration including directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses,
option and benefit -in-kind.

3.

To ensure HR strategies, policies and frameworks are in place for all the building blocks of a quality HR man-
agement system (e.g., succession planning, talent and leadership development training, etc.) to support the
RHBBLL in achieving its objectives.

To review and assess the effectiveness of the GHR and/or HR Division in supporting the RHBBLL.

To review and recommend for Board approval, any significant change in the organization structure of RHB-
BLL.

To perform any other functions as defined by the Board.

Rights and Duties of Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee

The Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee shall, at the minimum have the following rights
and duties:

1.

To study the establishment and amendment of the policy related the human resource management, deter-
mine the ethical rules, principles and management election process, remuneration of management team in
order to present to the Board of Directors for approval;

To give guidance on establishment and amendment of the manuals to present to the Board of Directors
for approval and also to monitor, inspect and report to the Board of Directors the implementation of such
manuals;

To determine the eligible requirements of the governance managers;

To select, recommend for the appointment or removal of Managing Director/CEO and Internal Audit and
recommend (them) to the Board of Directors for appointment in accordance with established criteria;

To consider appointment of Deputy MD/DCEO, Head of Departments, branch managers as recommended
by the Managing Director in order to present to the Board of Directors for approval;

113




Annual Report

10.

11.

To determine requirements and working plan for performance assessment of board of director and admin-
istrators;

To propose to the board of director regarding determination of penalty to administrators who breach the
company’s rules;

To propose to the board of director regarding removal of an administrator who is not qualified or not suitable
to continue to hold the position;

To summarize and evaluate its annual performance;
To report its performance to the board of director from time to time;

To perform rights and other related duties determined in relevant law and regulations.

Meetings & Minutes
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The Committee shall preferably meet at least once every two months or whenever deemed necessary at the
discretion of the Chairman

The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or 50% of the total members, whichever is
higher;

The committee may convene meetings at any place in Lao or other country

The committee is also allowed to carry out resolution by way of circulation.

Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the Committee shall be decided
by majority of the members present; and the secretary shall be the Group Company Secretary or an official
from Group Secretariat Division.

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible for:

- Drawing up the agenda with the concurrence of the Chairman

- Writing and safe-keeping the minutes of meeting and submission to Board.



Management Team

As of 31 December 2020, the Management team of RHB Bank Limited consisted of the following:

www .rhbg roup.com

1 Choong Seang Heng Chief Executive Officer

2 | Outtama Phompida Acting, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

3 Ong Chong Seng Head, Credit Management

4 | Chanpheng Chandavong Senior Manager, Credit Evaluation

5 | Phonepasong Mixab Senior Manager, Loan & Credit Administration
6 Somphavanh Bounyasith Senior Manager, Operations and Support

7 | Souphaphone Souannavong Senior Manager, Business Development and Marketing
8 | Phannavy Anoulack Manager, Credit Evaluation

9 | Bounyared Luangraj Manager, Risk Management

10 | Vinattha Phasathane Manager, Compliance

11 | Anouphong Southivong Manager, Human Resource and Training

12 | Vilaphonh Manivanh Manager, Information Technology

13 | Oulayvanh Siphandone Manager, Frontline Operations

14 | Kaysone Malaythong Assistant Manager, Frontline Operations

15 | Tanvinay Nguansavanh Manager, Sithan Neua Branch

16 | Sonethanouxay Sysanhouth Assistant Manager, Sithan Neua Branch

17 | Thonglay Phonvilaisouk Manager, Dongdok Branch

18 | Mayulin Sithongkham Assistant Manager, Dongdok Branch
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RHB &

(2) Organization Structure.

As of 31 December 2020, the staff’s organization structure was as follows:
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Rights and Duties of Chief Executive Officer / Deputy Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for day-to-day operations of the Bank in accordance with the rights
and duties defined in the internal regulations of the Bank.

The Chief Executive Officer is appointed and may be removed by the Board of Directors, has a term of office of three
years, and may be re-appointed consecutively not more than 3 times.

The Chief Executive Officer can be a member of the Board of Directors, but shall not be the Chairperson or a Dep-
uty Chairperson of the Board of Directors or a chairman of any board committee.

The Chief Executive Officer shall have the following rights and duties:

1. To act as the representative of, and to sign contracts and other official documents on behalf of the Bank

2. To manage day-to-day operations of the Bank

3. To develop and propose, or to propose adjustment to, the annual business plan to the Board of Directors for
consideration and approval, and then to implement such plan;

4. To appoint or remove the Deputy General Managing Director (DMD/DCEQ) and then to propose to the Board
of Directors for approval;

5. To appoint or remove the Head of Department or Branch Managers

6. To allocate employees of the bank according to his/her authority or according to proposal of the board of direc-
tor Committee;

7. To appoint, remove, recruit and deploy the employees of the Bank;

8. To provide data and information and to give explanation on particular issues of interests to the Board of Direc-
tors;

9. To develop and improve governance regulations and to propose [them] to the Board of Directors for consider-
ation and approval;

10. To be responsible to the Board of Directors for all operations of the Bank;

11. To recommend to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval, the establishment of branches and
affiliates or investments in other businesses;

12. To determine the salary structure for, and to implement reward policies and sanctions towards the employees
of the Bank, in accordance with regulations of the Bank;

13. To cooperate with, and to provide data, information and explanations, to the internal audit committee and ex-
ternal auditors;

14. To provide explanations and necessary documents as required by the Board of Directors;

15. To report on the operations of the Bank to the Board of Directors and its committees;

16. To exercise other rights, and perform other duties as provided under the regulations.

Company Secretary

The Board acknowledges and is satisfied with the performance and support rendered by the Company Secretary. In
addition to acting as the custodian of the Company’s statutory records, the Company Secretary serves and advises
the Board on matters relating to the affairs of the Board and good corporate governance practices, ensure that Board
meetings are appropriately convened and maintains an accurate and proper record of the proceedings and minutes
of the meetings.

In promoting good corporate governance practices, the Company Secretary assists the Board and Senior Manage-
ment in meeting regulatory requirements and best practices specifically pertaining to Board governance. This in-
cludes making proposals on transparency and mandatory/voluntary disclosure on governance issues which are rele-
vant and materially important to the stakeholders.

The role of the Company Secretary also includes assisting the Chairman and Directors in conducting meetings and
discharging their governance obligations and responsibilities as Directors of the Company. Additionally, the Compa-
ny Secretary facilitates the communication of key decisions and policies between the Board, Board Committees and
the Senior Management, updating the Board on the follow-up or implementation of decisions/recommendations.

In order to play an effective advisory role to the Board, the Company Secretary is kept abreast with the latest, indus-
try developments and best practices in corporate governance.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao People’s Democratic
Republic (Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company by 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank operates its bank-
ing business under the Law on Commercial Bank, No. 56/NA, dated 7 December 2018 and under the regulations of
Bank of Lao P.D.R (BOL). The Bank had received its Banking License No.10/BOL and Enterprise Registration Certifi-
cate No.213/ERA dated 30 May 2014.

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the BOD) of RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) are responsible for ensuring
that the financial statements are required to:

adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and esti-
mates and then apply them consistently;

comply in accordance with accounting policies of the Bank and the relevant accounting regulations and
notifications of BOL described in Note 2 to the financial statements and ensure that these have been, ap-
propriately disclosed explained and quantified in the financial statements;

maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal controls;

prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume that the Bank
will continue operations for the foreseeable future; and

effectively control and direct the Bank and be involved in all material decisions affecting the operations and
performance of the Bank, and ascertain that such decisions have been properly reflected in the financial
statements.

We confirm that the Bank has complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements as at and
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A .
SV nenngniNey
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g¥al) 290
P50

Choong Seang Heng
Chief Executive Officer
5 March 2020
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R”B‘ é‘gggal Report Section 6: Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Share holders and Board of Directors of
RHB Bank Lao Limited

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) for the year ended 31
December 2020 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant accounting regulations and
notifications of Bank of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic and accounting policies as described in Note 2 to the
financial statements.

What we have audited
The Bank’s financial statements comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory infor-
mation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report.

We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of accounting and restriction on distribution and use

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting policies described in Note 2 to the financial statements. As
a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

Our report is intended solely for the Bank and should not be distributed to or used by parties other than the Bank.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the relevant account-
ing regulations and notifications of Bank of Lao People’'s Democratic Republic and accounting policies described in
Note 2 to the financial statements, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alter-
native but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncer-
tainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited
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By Apisit Thiengtrongpinyo

Partner
Vientiane, Lao P.D.R.
5 March 2021
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